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Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov

September 1, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
{VC#177195-B009), Berlin, NH, for the provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Senrices
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program to individuals and families who are experiencing
homelessness. by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by
$128,533 from $127,022 to $255,555 and extending the completion date from October 31, 2021
to October 31, 2022, effective November 1, 2021, upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24. 2020, item #20
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on January 22, 2021, item #5A.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $84,682 $0 $84,682

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $42,340 $0 $42,340

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief
TBD $0 $85,689 $85,689

2023 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief
TBD $0 $42,644 $42,844

ToUl $127,022 $128,533 $255,655

The Deportment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His ExceDertcy, Governor Christopher T. Sunur^u
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing the Permanent Supportive Housing
Program to deliver rental assistance and supportive services to individuals and families who are
experiencing homelessness. Annually, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive application process in which HUD
evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD directs the Department to
provide grant awards in specific amounts to vendors. This contract is being amended to add
additional funding awarded by HUD relative to the 2020 Federal Fiscal Year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA).

Approximately six (6) households, comprised of individuals or families, will be served at
any given time.

The Contractor facilitates relocating partidpants into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize partidpants'
ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor services using the following tools:

Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.,
Paragraph 1.2., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is extending
contract services for one (1) year of the one (1) year and eight (8) months available at this time.

Should the Governor artd Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive sen/ices available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families in
unsafe or potentially deadly situations without a safety.net.

Area served: Carroll, Coos and Grafton Counties

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN# NH0120L1T002001

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Co

Shibinette

issioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment,to the Permanent Supportive Housing II Program contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020, (Item #20), as amended on January 22, 2021 (Item #5A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph T. Subparagraph 1.2., the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31. 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$255,555

3. Add Exhibit C-2, Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

r

—DS

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01-A02 Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Oatef/Vi^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective November 1, 2021, upon Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/7/2021

-OocuSigiMd by:

Date

Title: Associate commissioner

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

D»euSign*dby:

9/1/2021
—  l,.M.,4CWr7D1Qg5Ap^3;.;
Date Name:Jeanne RooiiTard, ceo

Title:

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01-A02 Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

>DocuSlgn«4f by:

9/8/2021 J. (Jm^dfLur AUKs(ui(t
^  A.. ot^<gtB»oP44oa.i

Q3^0 Name:^- Christopher Marshall

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:

Title:

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01-A02 Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-2. Amendment 12. Budget

TCCAP PSH II

|CoC Funds • NH0120L1T002001

SFY22 - 11/1/21-6/30/22 1
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operating S  51.487 S s S s - S  51.487 S - S

Supportive Senaces S  32.043 S s s • S  32.043 $ • s

Administration S  2.159 i s » • S  2.159 s - $

25% Required Match t  21.895 s S  21.895 s • s

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S  1Q7J84 s s  zi.ess $ - $  85.689 s • s

SFY23 - 7/1/22-10/31/22
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operating 25,7*« 25.744

Supporti<« Services

Administration

2S% Required Match
TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S3.7»2

TOTAL • 11/1/21-10/31/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assisatance 77.231 77J31

Suppo<tlM« Services

Administration 3,238

2S% Required Match -
TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE

32.843

Total W/0 Match S 128.533

Tri-County Community Action Program, IrK.
SS-2020-8HS^-PERMA-01-A02

Exhibit C-2, Amendment 82, Budget

Contractor Initialsa
Page 1 of 1 0,,, 9/1/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-GOUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccreiarj' of State's olTice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005362631

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th dav of Mav A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Sccretaiy of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo. hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contracl signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ChairA/ice Chair/ Secretary of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 25th , 2021_, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That ^Jeanne Robillard, CEO; Randall Pilotte, CFO.
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

(may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc._ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature ejected Ofwfer
Name: Sano^^Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (Mwoormv)

09/28/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER

IMPORTANT If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the polleyiles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provblons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condKlom of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endoreementfs).

pftoouccn

FlAl/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

AndreaNWdln

(903)999-3218 ITa'S.w.,. <603)945-4331

AOOMSS: Manch.certsQcroas8gency.com
MSUAEMtSI AFFOMMHO COVCKAOS NAICS

iNsuneiiA PNledetphii Indemnity Ins Co 18059

wsunEo

TrLCounty Community Action Prosram. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03S70

waimeRB Granite State Healtn Care and Himan Services Self-

MSUMR C

MSUnCRD

MSURSRE

(NSURERF

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUEO TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDtCATEO. NOTVMTHSTANOINO ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM Oft CONDITiON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VMTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAD CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF mSURANCe POLICY NUMBER
POUCVEfP

fMM/DCHYYYYI
POLKVEXP
mwoofcrm LIMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL 0£NERAC UASrUTY

C 1 ̂  OCCUR

PHPK22934S4 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE is 1.000.000 |
1 claimsmac DAMAGE TOKbNfbO , 100.000

UED EXP(Anr on* pmoni , S,OM

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY , 1,000,000

ocrg AGORE^TE LWIT APPUES PER:

poucY n Q t-oc
OTHER:

GENERALAGGREOATE , 3,000,000

X PROOUCT8 • COUP/OP AOG , 3.000,000

A

MO

X

rOMOauE UAQOiTY

PHPK2293491 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

COU8INEO fithCLE LIMIT
(E* ■ede*nn S 1.000,000

AMY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OMCD
AUTOS ONLY .

BOOAY INJURY (Pw pNMn) s

BODILY INJURY (P«r •CcUanQ s

PftOPEQTi' DALUCE
fPtr aeddami s

s

A g
UHaRELLAUAB

EXCESS UAB 1
X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHU877441S 07/01/2021^ 07/01/2022
EACH OCCURRENCE , 2,000.000

AGGREGATE , 2.000,000
DEO 1 X| RETENTION S 10.090 | s

B

WORKCnS COMPeNSATION
AND CKFLOYERS-UA8IUTY y/N
ANYPftopniETon/PARTNEftcxECunvE rm
OFFICEMtEMaEA EXCLUOeO? ^
(MtftdtterylnNH) '
H Ml. dtK/fce unMr
OeSCftlFTlON OF OPERATIONS MKwr

N«A HCHS2021000042S (3a.) NH . 02/01/2021 02A>1/2022

VI per I OTh-^ STATUTE 1 ER
E.L EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000,000

e.L. olSEAse • POLJCi- uurr ^ 1.000,000

A
Professional Liability

PKPK2293454 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

Each Occurrence

Aggregate
1.000,000

3,000.000

0E8LWPTI0N OF OFERATIONS / t^ATIONS / VEMCIES (ACOR0101. AMliontl Rvmarka SetMdul*. m«y 0« attMrMd Vner* requIrM)
Refer to poBcy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions^

state of NH ■ DHKS

129 Pleassnt Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THS ABOVE DESCRIBED P0LICIS8 BE CANCELLEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTtCB WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIOMS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 26 (2016/03)
e 1966-2019 ACORD CORPORATION. All righU reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are regtstered marks of ACORD



MISSION STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program

provides opportunities to strengthen

communities by improving the lives of

low to moderate income families and

individuals.

VISION STATEMENT

Individuals and families are empowered

to create vibrant communities and

foster self-sufficiency.

VALUES STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program,

values a culture of integrity.

This Includes:

1. Transparency in all our interactions

and communications, stressing

accountability to ourselves as an

organization and to those we serve.

2. Connection to community. We value

our community partners and work

to build strong partnerships that

unite us all in the common goal of

improving the lives of others.

3. Recognition of our mutual humanity.

We treat customers, co-workers

and colleagues with compassion,

fairness, dignity and respect.

4. We value the empowerment of

those who seek our.services,

believing that empowerment leads

to improved self-worth and enables

■  those we serve to fully participate in

their communities and share their,

success with others.

liwt 30 Exchange St., Berlin, NH 03570
^community

'ction.
Phone; (603) 752-7001

www

^TRI-COUNTY
^ ^COMMUNITY ACTION

Serving CoOs. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

pAnrNcnsHip
.tccap.org

iT

I

X?

«  y
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Financial Statements

TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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TRI-COUNTY COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019
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Statement of Activities
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the Uniform Guidance
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To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate
Berlin, New Hampshire

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PR()Ffissi"^^,\i ,\ss(K:iArii>s

CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANi:>

WOLFEBORO • KORTH CONVJ'AY

DOVER • CONCORD

STR-ATHAiM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for^the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit! We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures. to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oh the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes In its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unrnodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 21, 2019. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on-the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporling and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 28, 2020

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $  2,257,081 $  1.400.750

Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 796,937 583,963

Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1.274.(j83
Property held for sale 47,000 47,000

Pledges receivable 307,017 231,161

Inventories 102,430 85,886

Prepaid expenses 77.882 34.037

Total current assets 4,911,199 3,656,880

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

12,344,805
(5.601,944)

6,742,861

12,086.152
(5,178.535)

6,907,617

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

384.711 418.936

$ 12,038,771 $ 10,983,433

LIABIHTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt'
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

437,843

3.554
180,427
243,779

49,059
137,304
181,463

850.982

2,084.411

4,792,557

6,876,968

4,565,253

596,550

5,161,803

148,449

4,870
221,571
204,079
210,952
89,524
197,157
598,195

1,674,797

5,227.835
3.355

6.905,987

3,399,192
676,254

4.077.446

$ 12,038,771. $ 10,983,433

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIOM PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts

Program funding
Utility programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Furtdraising
Rental income

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation.
Volunteer

Workforce Development
Carroll County Dental
Support Center
Homeless

Ertergy end Community Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting Activities:

General and administrative

Fundraisirtg

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  4.565.253

Without Donor With Donor 2020 2019

Rostrictlons Restriction? Total Total

$  14.425.841 $  483.472 S  14.909.313 $ 14.475.114

1.084,133 . 1.084.133 1.167.509

1,923,653 . 1.923.653 1.287.103

455.826 . 455.826 477,167

326.215 . 326.215 230.986

32.544 - 32.544 39.303

635.559 . 635.559 625.046

923 . 923 643

2.225 2.225 (32.892)
. - (255.492)

4.379 - 4.379 196,364

18.691.298 483.472 19.374,770 18.210.851

565.176 (565.176) . -

19.456.474 (81,704) 19.374,770 18.210,851

1.047.356 1.047.356 950.639

2.769.065 . 2.769.065 2.758.782

769.597 . 769,597 767.241

991.504 . 991,504 916.089

94.845 . 94,845 118.408

346.114 . 346,114 354.263

653.810 . 653,810 747.474

558.244 . 558.244 355.206

800.148 . 800.148 714,066

7.824.201 . 7.824.201 7.788.560

1.149,136 . 1.149,136 1.191,571

220.900 220.900 172,852

17.224.920 17.224.920 16.835.151

1.062.613 1.062.613 1.032.207

2.860 . 2.680 9,895

1.065.493 1.065.493 1.042.102

18.290.413 18.290.413 17.877.253

1.166,061 (81.704) 1.084.357 333,598

3.399.192 678.254 4.077.446 3.743,848

596,550 $ 5.161.603 $ 4,077.446

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statomonts
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TRUCnilNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 202Q AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  1.084.357 $  333,598

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depreciation and amortization 436,197 448,556

(Gain) loss on disposal of property (2.225) 32,892

Loss on write down of property held for sale - 255,492

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (48,769) (117,426)

Pledges receivable (75,856) (18,954)

Inventories (16,544) 1,683
Prepaid expenses (43,845) (8,397)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities;
Accounts payable (41,144) (15,705)

Accrued compensated absences 39,700 956

Accrued salaries (161.893) 23,444

Accrued expenses 47,780 (42,364)

Refundable advances (15,694) 6,088

Other liabilities 252.787 211,027

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1.454,851 1,110,892

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property 4,495 , 14,283

Purchases of property and equipment (273.711) (95,588)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (269,216) ■ •  (81.305)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayment on demand note payable - (516,022)

Repayment on long-term debt (145,884) (141,273)

Repayment on capital lease obligations (4,671) (4.446)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (150.555) (661,741)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION;

Cash paid during the year fon

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

1.035.080

2.403.649

$  3,438.729

367,846

2.035.803

S 2,403,649

$  131.879 $ 152.078

18,830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

.  The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This Includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

8
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill. traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that'capacity. - This program serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary sen/ices, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance,
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend. on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 27,955 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



OocuSign Envelope ID; 041197AC-9D7F-4FC1-AE39-76A0A30C68E6

The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, .with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full

array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone, modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and

stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention: supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

10
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LoW'tncome Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while" improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin. New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management" and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title Z of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

11
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Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report, information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in'
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $596,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in.
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires" in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with -donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

12
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and. all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

13
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,463 and $197,157 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively..

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe thfey have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from . the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

14
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Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors^, indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $307,017 and $231,161,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

15
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 {ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

t •

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs, and supporting sen/ices based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to' a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space cgsts on the statements of functional expenses.

insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

16
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The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to-the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement >with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 10.4%. The actual

rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and
$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and 2019.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230); Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.
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During the year ended June 30, 2020", the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and. the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting
standard, is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional.
ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the resource provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow,the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the
transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the.grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30 2020
and 2019;

2020 2019
Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2.257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1.322,852 T274,'o83
Pledges receivable 307!oi7 ' '231I6I

Total financial assets 3.886.950 2.905.994
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Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year .

Amounts not available within one year

596,550

(410.015)

186.535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 3.700.415

678,254

(565.176)

113.078

S  2.792.916

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,860,000 and $2,786,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investrhents with original maturities of three'months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit. Management

'  believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:,

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2020

$ 2,257,081
796,937
384.711

S 3.438.729

2019

$1,400,750
■ 583,963
418.936

$2.403.649

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond Issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial

Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019

was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30,2020.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $190,045 and $179,277, respectively. See Note 15. ■

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (RFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

NOTES. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,810,288 $ 3,753,302 $6,056,986
Equipment 2,105,950 1,848,642 257,308
Construction

in progress 4,727 - 4,727
Land 423.840 : 423.840

S12.344.805 £^JIL944

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,709,749 $3,469,618 $6,240,131
Equipment 1,950,063 1,708,917 241.146
Construction

in progress 2,500 - 2,500 d
Land 423.840 = 423.840

-  S12.086.152 , $ 5.178.535 $6.907.617

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30. 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447,669, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492 in 2019.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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2020 ' 2019

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
Installment due January 2027. $ 110,824 $ 124,867

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 307,719 ' .328,896

Note payable with a bank requiring ''60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 4,478 9,618

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 4,228 7,642

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 3,948 7,385

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60 i
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum.. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 705 2,331

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 7,294 9,739

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at ■5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 387,227 395,429
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2020 2019

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is r^t subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2,547,308 2,634,595

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

5,241,331 5,388,102
n0.9311 (11.8181

5,230,400 5,376,284
(437.8431 (148.4491

S 5.227.835

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2020 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2021 .

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Amount

$  437,843
123,107

485,399
118,243
122,486

3.954.253

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.
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NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consisied of
the following:

2020 2019

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 1,213 $ 3,291

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 944 2,261

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 1.397 2.673

3,554 8,225
Less current portion <!3,554) (4.8701

2  ; ^

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2020 were as
follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

2021 £ - 3,554
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NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021 ' $ 127,803
2022 7.321

.  £ 135.124

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for sorne of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of,
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc, receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30. 2020 and 2019, approximately 68% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of

, the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited, to, HUD.
•Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 307,017 $ 231,161
FAR 102,998 .117,470

Restricted Buildings 85,713 87,541

DOE 46,287 -

FAR/EAR 24,350 11,290

Loans - HSGP 22,029 19,907

RSVP Program Funds 5,887. 7,056

Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,571

RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 -

Loans-HHARLF 104 -
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BWP/HRRP Program 94
10 Bricks Shelter Funds - ' 142,190
Support Center - 25,939
Weatherization ' - 25,000

Senior Meals - 5,130

Head Start ■ 3.999

Total net assets with donor restrictions S 596.550

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Comp//'ance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a '1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants rejated to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further

■ structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including-containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $129,407 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.-

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,049 and $46,514 were

. held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts,'or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $25.0 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from .the
residual receipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28,
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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■rni-COUMTY COMMUWTY AC-nON PHOGRAM IWC.

SCKEDULS OP EXPENOtTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEOERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL
CFOA

MUMBER
PASS-'mROUGH

GRANTOR'S MAUE '

GRANTOR'S
tOEHT^FYWO

NUMBER
FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURES

1
O

U.S. Dcp»rtm<rW of Htalth and Humin Servicw
Head SUft

Head Start

Low-tncome Home Energy Assistance
LmMnccme Home Energy Assistance
Lo<«r-lncon>e Home Energy Assistance
Low-Income Homo Energy Assistartce

AGING CLUSTER
Special Programs for tfte A^ng • Tnb III. Part B • Grants for Supportive Services eno Senior Centers (SEAS)
Special Programs for me Agng • Tttle HI. Part B - Grants for Supportive Servicas and Sei^ Centers (Sr. Wheels)

Special Programs for the Aging - TrJe IH. Part C - Nutrition Services (Congregate t HO Meals)

Nurition Senrices Incentive Program (NStP)

Corrvisinily Services Bloeir Grerv

TANF CLUSTER
Terr^ery Assistance lor Needy FamKes (NHEP Workplace Success)
Ttrr^ary Assistance for Needy Famiies (JARC)

HIV Care Formula Grants (Ryan White Cere Program)

Sodai Servicas Blodi Grerr: (Title XX l&R)
Social Servieei Block Gram (Trtlo XX HD)
Social Services Blodt (Srant ((suerdianship)

Promoling Safe and StsWe Farrslles/Family violence Prevention and Servlcea/Olscretlonary

Preventative HHS Block Grant S Irfury Prsventicn end Control Research

Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessntss (PATH)

Special Progrwns for the Aging Title IV and Title II Oiscreiionary Projects

Total U.S. Depvtmem ol Health and Human Services

93.600

93.600

93.566
93.566
93.669
93.568

93.044
93.044

93.045

93.053

93.569

93.558
93.558

State of New Hampifwi Office of Er^ergy end Planning
Stale of New Hampshim Office of Energy and Ptannino
Slate of New Hampshire Office of Erergy and Planning
State of New Hampshire Office of Erwrgy and Raming

State of New HampsMre Office of Energy and Planning
Slate of Nvn HampsNre Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire Depertmenl of Health end Htanan Services

State of New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Ikenan Services

Slate d New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc.
Slate of New Hampshire Depertmert of HeaRh and Htenan Servicas

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services93.917 State of New

93.667 S-^ia of New
93.667 State of New
93.667 State of New

93.556 6 93.593 Siste of New Hampshire Coeiillon egoinst Domestic end Sexual Violence

93.136 6 93.758 Stale of New Hampsrfre CoeCtion against Domestic at^ Sexual lAolence

93.150 Stala of New Hampshire Bureau of Hometessnass and Housing

93.048 Stale of New Herrpshire Oepartmoni of Heelth and Humen Services

OlCHIOOOOO&OO ' S 1.595.937
Oir.Hl0000.06^ 1.043J72

TOTAL " 2.638.209

G-19B1NHLIEA 120,562
(^30B1NKLIEA 5.404.284

G-19B1NHLIEA 1056420 64.895
G-?0R1NHLiFA 1056430 246.933

TOTAL 5.956.564

IBAANHTOSS 7.247
513-500353 122.661

TOTAL 129.929

541-500386 279.797

NONE 95.471-

CLUSTER TOTAL 505.196

103-500731 691.308

16-OHHS-BWW-C5P-OS 318.993
1B07NHTANF 34.900.

ClllSTFR TOTAL 343.792

«in-finm7i 9.495

545-500387 111.196
544-500386 94.819
103-500731 13.695

TOTAL 209.710

SP»=IDV 53,401 _

SVP 3.602

05-e5-43'433010-7S26 59.039

30.000

'  s 10 378.306



TH^COUHTT COMMtffffTT ACTION PROGRAM INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOFTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 80. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTORFPROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

GRANTORS

IDENTIFYINO

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

Watflienzation Aisistance {or Low-kicomo Pcraons

Total U.S. Departtnem of Eriergy

U.S. Cofnoratloo for National atxl Community Swvtea

Re*^raa and Senior Volunlaer Program

Total U.S. Corporation for NaUorid and CommurMy Service

Chid and AdiR Cara Food Program

Total U.S. Oapartmant of AgriaAjra

U.S. Daoartmerrt of Home<ar>d Saoutltv

Emergency Food i Sheiier Program (FEUA)

Emergency Mar>agerr«ni Perform anca Grants (FEMA)

Total U.S. Oepenmem of Homeland SacuMy

Cfima Vldim Assistance (VOCA)

Sexual Assatii Services Fonnuia Program (SASP)

OVW Taennical Asststanca Initiativa

Total U.S. Oepartmeni of JusUca

Formula Grants (or Rural Areas (Section S3T1)

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

EnharKed MobOty of Sanion and Indtvklats with Ksatttties

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

ErrMrgency Soludons Grant Program

Continuum of Care Program (HOIP)

Contnuum ol Cara Program (HOIP)

Total U.S Oepartmeni ol Housing ana Uroan Development

81.042 Stale of New Hampshire Govcmor'i Office of Energy & Commurity Services

10.SS8 State of New htampaMre DcpaRment of EducaSon

97.024

97.042 State of New HampsNre Oepartmam of Safety

16.S75 Ststaof Haw Hampshire CoaRtonagalrtsl Domestic and SexuNVloienca

16.017 Slata of Haw Hanaishire Coaition against Domestic and SawN ̂olenca

16.526 GraftonCouity Court

20.509 ' Stata ol New Hampshee Oepwenem of Transponatton

20.513 Stata of New Hampshire OepanmefV of Ttansponaiion

14.267

14.267

Stata of Haw Kampshife Oepameni of Heem and Human Samces

State of New Hampihira Oapartmant of HeMlh and Human Servicas
State of New Hampshire Oepartmeni of Haenh and Human Satvieas

iSSRANHOOt

NONE

EMB-2O17-EP-OO0OS-SO1

NONE

- 2016-KF-AX-0(M3

OVW.2016-t3829

NH-16-N346

NH.6SJ(006

CLUSTER TOTAL

SS-20lMHHSO1.Ce«e .4

r«H303CClTnoa

s 483 349

s 76,072

i 78.072

I 159.225

i 159.225

s 29.368'

43.062

S 72.470

s 224.910

16 306

61.303

s 302.519

i 515.335

18.034

16,034

S 533.360

S 1C0.6S2

182,876

72.548

255.424

S 356.066



TWWeOUMTY COMmJWTTY *CTK>N PROCRAJ<. WC.

SCKCDULC OF EXPENDITURES OF FEOERAL AWARDS

FOR T><E YEAR ENOEO JUNE 9C. Wn

FEDERAL ORANTORTPROCRAM TTILE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUHBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

GRANTOR'S

OENTIFYnC

NUMBER

FEDERAL
EXPENDITURES

tlx nerwftmenl ef labor

WIAIMOA CLUSTER

WIAfWIOA Aduh Program

WlA/WtOA Dislecated Worlier Formuit Oranis

17.258

17.278

Southern New Hampshire Servieas, inc.
Southern New Hampehire Services, inc.

2018-0004

2018-0004

8  38.748

22.212

Total U.S. Oepdrtmem of Labor CLUSTER TOTAL $  - 00 960

Ccrenavtrus Relief Fund

.Cerorwiius Relief Ftmd

Total U.S. Ocpanmenl of Ota Traastay

TOTAL exPENOnVRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

21.019

21.019

Stele e( NH Dapattmenl ef HHS. CMMen ef LT Supports and Services
Governor's Oflice of Emergency Relef and Recovery
COVID-19 long Term Cera StaCibation Program

t  89,460

as 460

t  124.920

1  12.529.276

NOM^EOERAl.

Naw> Hampshif* PxMc LUU** Co^iny • Home Ene^ AsslMnee

NOTE A . BASta OF PRESENTATPW

The aecempMying scheOFe e< ependttiees e< Federal Awwde (the Sctiediie) indudc* IM federal rerart aclMy el Tri-Counitr Cemmuniiy Action hegnm. Inc. under pregrame el Fte federal gcremmtnl ler the iwar ended June SO. 2O20. The Weimiden In tnH
Senedule i* presented ki secartttnce wl3> the cequvcments o( TMe 2 U.S.Cede of Federal Regutetions Pan 200. IMfom AdiiMiSnir*^ Requremena, Ceel PirwqglBJ. endAudH Regudemertt feiFedere/Aaterds (IMfotm OUdence). SeesuM me Schedule pratente
only a seieeied penlen el the operaUons oi TrVCoiMy Conunurtiiy Aoion Program, Ine.. H I* noi imended lo and does not ptcsenl the Ibiandal position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of (he Otganizsiian.

MOTE B ■ SUMMARY OF StCWIFICANT ACCOUWTyiO POUCfCS

Cxpenditms repencd cn the Schedule we reported en Ote accrual basis el aocaurak^. Sudi expenditures are recognized felewing the eact principles ooniatfted In Urttorm Otadancs. wherein ceiia'n trpes el evandhises art not
reknburieraem. Negalhe amounts shown on the SeheduM rapreseru a^uslmems or cradti made in me nornul course el business lo amewnis teponod as ar^andlliaM in prior yoars.

MOTE e - WOffteCT RATE ~
Tii^unty Community AcUen Program Inc. has decttd lo not us# tho lO-parcam da rrdnimls indkecl cost rate aBMred under die Uniform OuidBnes.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. STRAimM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of.expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly,^ we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our corisideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Giyen these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2020. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to Its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United Stales of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. complied, In all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements-
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with 'Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirerhent of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of.
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

(  SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included;

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, CSBG - CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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^TRI-COUNTY
' ̂COMMUNITY ACTION

Serving Cods, Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2021

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Business

Inducted 2014 Renewed 2020

Karolina Brzozowska Linda Massimilla

Low Income Elected Official

Inducted 2015 Renewed 2018 Inducted 2015 Renewed 2018

Secretary

Tricia Garrison

Low Income

inducted 2015 Renewed 2018

Richard Mcleod

Low Income

Inducted 2015 Renewed 2020

Treasurer

George Sykes

Elected Official

Inducted 2020
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CORE STHEIVCTHS

Program development, management and administration ♦ Communit)' collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery ro meet funder standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions &c problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

PHOFESSIOl^AL EXPEBIEI^CE

Tri-Coanl^ Coiiiiniiniiy Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Exccntivc OCfiiicr

Derlio. IVU itOtS - current FV entpieyment

TH-Countj Commanitj Action Programs, inc.
Chief Operating Officer
BerUn. NH 2016-2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Coiiut^ Communilj Action Programs, Inc.
Division Uircctbr: TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, I\U 2015-2016

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fundcrs
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and scr\tice deliver)';
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Coanty Community Action Pr€>gramai, Inc.
Program/Di%'ifiion Director: Support Center at Burch Bouse
Littleton, IVew Hampshire 2007- 2015.

Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant repons and financial
statements for fundcrs and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim ser\'ice initiatives,-including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.
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Bookkeeper: Women's Rural Entreprcneoriol Network (WREN)
Beth]ehem« NH current FT emplojment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-Count^ Communiij Action Progroms, Inc.
Direct Serrices/Volnnteer Coordinator: iSnpport Center at Bnrch Ilonse
Littleton, New Tlampshire 1997 to 2007

Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supcr\'isc staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Haverhill Area JoTenile Diversion Pri^ram
Woodsville, New llampshire 1999-3001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service ofticers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community' outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Familj Institnte>Jefferson Shelter
Jefferson, New llampshire 1996-1999

. Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youtli, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edwcation

BS in Unman Services, Springfield College School of Dimian Services, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated mth 4.0 CPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehobilitation Counseling (DABC Program)
Southern Connecticut Community College, New Haven, CTT

Additional Skills. Professional JLcadcrship and Civic AfjiliaAiows

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003

♦ Certified PRJME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; individual Member 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current <

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Citizen's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 2015- current
♦' Speakeasy Triojazz Vocalist/Sweet jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997-current
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Instirute current since 1993
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Randall S. Pilotte

S UMMARY

Accounting professional with over 29^years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations . Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. rNC.. Berlin, NH 06/2013-Present

CFO (2017-Present) 4
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems'and activities of the Agency with a budget of $18M.
•  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies.
• As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance

policies, objectives and programs.
•  Prepares program and agency budgets, in conjunction" with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,

coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal perfonnance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
•  Hire,train,directandevaluateemployeeperformance withinthedepartment;recommendpromotion.s and salary

adjustments.
•  Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and

covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.
•  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor in vestments associated

with each property.
•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016- 2017)

• Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.

•  Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.

• Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.

•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditois.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in cornplcting annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:
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KENTNUTRITION GROUP. INC (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds, Inc.). Londonderry. NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant ControUer (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversawallaspcctsofproprietarysoftware,multi-statepayrollsystemforSOOemployees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, includingquarterly and year-end returns,processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.

•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
• Oversaw month-end accmals.

• Assisted and re^ondcd to auditors'requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiativesby providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord. NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science. Accounting. Franklin PIERCE COLLEGE. Concord. NH
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"If human beings are perceived as potentials rather than
problems,as possessingstrengthsinsteadof>veaknesses.as

unlimited rather than dull and unresponsive, then they thrive
andgrovtotheircapabilities."

-Barbara Bush

Experience

July 2020-Present

Chief Programs Officer* TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and management of
the agency's programs and services directly or through a program director or
manager as well as works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop future
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with national program standards and stale / federal governing laws and
requirements.

May 2019-Present

Division Director- TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
design, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs
and facilities under Prevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tyler Blain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Sen/ices for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sept 2018-Present

Division Operations Coordinator •TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible for monitoring compliance of grant deliverables and legal / ethical
integrity ofprograms and sers'ices offered throughout the Division. Responsible
to compile and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes to Sr.
management and local stakeholders. Responsible to develop, review, and
update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight.

May2017-August 2018

North Country SUD Continuum of Care Facili
Coordinator •North Country Health Consorti

COCF: The North Country Region's desigrtScd'StaicJidisoh responsible tp
work with regional key stakeholders to condiffilo comprehcnsi ve.asscts and gaps
analysis; reporting back findings to NH PIj||lS and faciiiiatc the development
of a comprehensive plan aimed to creffcAn robust, effective, and welj-
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April 2014-May 2017
Division Director ♦ TCCAP, Inc- Clinical Services

esponsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
^gn, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs and

(ties under Clinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and other
^^.^^^ervices, Friendship House; the region's 32- bed Residential Treatment
jVfflciii^ and the Tamworth Dental Center Practice.

3Cy?4-Aprll 2014
Assijciate Division Director "TCCAP, Inc- Division of Alcohol and Drugs

hi i^njunction with the Division Director, responsible to provide joint Sr.
Leadership and oversight to the development, design, daily operation,
compliance, and financial solvency of the programs and facilities under the
ivision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Friendship House, the

region's 32- bed Residential Treatment facility, the out-patient SUD treatment
practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country and
the Impaired Driver Care Management Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlehem, NH-$5.2 MIL-2015-2018

17,588-sq fl,32-Bed Residential Substance Use Disorder Treatment Facility

•  Submission of state and federal grant applications resulting in $2.7 MIL in
awards & executed a grassroots advocacy campaign securing the remaining $2.5
MIL In anonymous donations

•  Issued all final project approvals on the design, project development,
construction, submission of permit applications and town zoning requirements,
and licensurc and compliance standards.

Implemented New Reimbursement System, 2015

•  Eliminated the Division's dependence on grant funding by successfully procuring
contracts and credentialing with NH Mcdicaid, MCO's, and Commercial

insurance companicscreatingeligibility to submitclaimson a fee-for-serviccbasis
stabilizing revenue and enhancing rates for service.

•  Successfully negotiated a contract amendment with DHHS to expand billable
services to include Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient services resulting in an
increase to from $ 1.8 MIL to $2.SMIL

Expert Panelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: Community-Based
MAT for Opioid Use Disorders in Now Hampshire, First Edition, 2016

Civic Involvement

2019- Present MWV Supports Recovery Adu'fsbry Board
2017-Present North Country Serenity BOD . ^
2016- Present Stand-UpAn^oscogginVjelleyCaalUlon,
2016 - 2018 Project Aware, BHS, Ad/sory Board'
2017 - Present Littleton ATOD Coaliti

2018-Present Lancaster Area Coalitionf ̂
2016 - 2017 NCHC Board of Direct

-Member

• Officer

• Member

• Member

• Member

- Member

- Mciubcr
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Skills

.Creative flair Good sense of humor Excellent written and

oral communication

skills

Edging Community
Pr^Mter

Cultural intelligence Well- informed in

policy and procedure
development

■f^ftflent in Office
SiiiL^

Versatile and
adaptable

Proficient in budget
development and
management

Solution focused
prpblem resolution

Computer and
technology adept

Lateral thinking and
logical reasoning

Clique leadership
jnrough empowerment

Knowledgeable grant
writer

Innovative

'Detail oriented Creative strategic
planner

Experienced non
profit management

Excellent Community
and political relations

Advocacy Approachable,
relatable, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH.
2017-In Progress |Business Administration
Coursework: accounting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories
and practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative skills to
analyze.
White Mountains Conimunit>' College, Berlin NH.
2015-2017 [Business Administration
Coursework; management, accounting, finance, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operations/project management, entrepreneurship, and computer
applications; Completed requirements of the first two years of a four-year
business administration degree, AS-equivalent, 4.0 CPA
White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.
2011 [Leadership North Country
Coursework; The program selects a diverse group aspiring leaders in northern
New Hampshire through a competitive nomination and application process.
Candidates participate in a 9-month program focused on education, arts and
culture, leadership and civil engagement, travel and tourism, and government
and politics.

References
Available upon request ^
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Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel

Permanent Supportive Housing II
FY2d21

Name Job Title Salary % Salary
Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

leanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $120,000 0% 0

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $80,080 0% 0

Kristv Letendre Chief Program Officer $70,000 0% 0

Sarah Wight Economic Supports

Department Head

$55,000 7% $3,850

Sheretta Davis Housing Stability Program
Director

$45,000 8% $3,600
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LoH A. Shibiattte

Connitsioscr

ChrUdne L SaataakUo

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

119 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-80(^-3343 Eit 9474

Fai: 603-271-4230 TOD Accra: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhba.Blugov

December 21, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Senrtces, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, amend an existing Sole Source contract with Tn-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (VC#177195-B009), Berlin. NH for the provision of Permanent Housing and
Supportive Sen/ices to Individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program by exercising a renewal option by extending the completion
datie from June 30,2021 to October 31, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval with
no change to the price limitation of $127,022. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020, Item #20.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of .funds in the future operating budget, wHh the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified. ^ ,

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALtH & SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING,
HOUStNGSHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget ,

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42309700 $127,022 ($42,340) $84,682

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42309700 $0 $42,340 $42,340

Total $127,022 $0 $127,022

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 50 requires any subsequent amendments to be lat>elled as sole source.

the purpose of (his request is to continue providing a Permanent Supportive Housing
Program that delivers rental assistance and supportive services to individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness.

Tli4 Dtporlmenl of Health and Human Servictt' Mission lilojoln communities and families
in providing opportunities forcitixens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Chrtstopl>6r T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Council

Page 2 of 2

Approximatety six (6) households, comprised of individuals or families, will be served at
any one time,, from November 1, 2020 to October 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Chsis
Management plans, the Contractor facilitates the movement of each participant into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more Independently.

The Departn)ent will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
Information:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules ar>d contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

As referenced' In Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section .1.,
Paragraph 1.2., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The DepartmerYt Is extending
contract services for four (4) months of the two (2) years available at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving vulnerable Individuals and
families in unsafe and potentially deadly sHualions. Additionally, If data Is not collected as required
by the contract, the Department will be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.

■ Area served: Carroll. Coos and Grafton Counties

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0120T1T001900

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblr»ette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Permanent Supportive Housing II Program Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Permanent Supportive, Housing II Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and t>elween the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and TrI-County Community Action
Program, Inc., (hereinafter refened to as "the Contractor"), a nonproM corporation with a piace of business
at 30 Exchange Street. Berlin, NH 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24. 2020 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1. Subparagraph 1.2., the Contract may be amended and
extended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price lirhitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend .as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31, 2021.

2. Modify Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.2., to read:

1.2.' Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services is amended to read:

■  3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement in the contrary, and subject to the
approval of the governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement as
indicated In block 1.17, unless no such approval Is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement Is signed by the State Agency as shown
in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").

3.2. if the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective Date, all Services
performed by the contractor prior to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk
of the Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, Including without limitation any obligation to
pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. Contractor must
complete all Services by the Completion Date specified in block 1.7.

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years from the
Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 Amendment #1. Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Tri-County Communiiy Action Program. Inc. Amendment #1 Conlrador Inllialsl

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01-A01 Pago lot 3 v Date r/2b2o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

by:

Nai

12/28/2020

Date
Santamel lo

Title: Director.

12/23/2020

Date

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

— DecuSlgnab by;

Hard

Title: ceo

Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2D20-BHS-09-PERMA-01 -AOI Page 2 Of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. r

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'•Oac«9ign«e ty:

12/29/2020

~0*c«9ie^»r

Date mnos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title":

Tri'County Communlly Action Program, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01-A01 Pago 3 of 3
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JUN10'20 Atil0:57 DftS

STATE OF r«:w HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

omSlON OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABUnv

129 PLEASANT STRIXT. CONCORD. NH OMOl
M3-27I-9474 l40a«S2-3345Eit9474

Fai: 603-271-4130 TDD Accew: l-e0O.733-29i^ www.dhhinh.fov

June 1. 2020

His Excellency. Governor ChrlatopherT. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hanfipshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to" enter Into a Sole Source contract with Tri-County Community Action
Pfpgram. Inc. (VO#177195-B009). Berlin. NH In the amount of $127,022 tor the Revision of
Permanent Housing end Supportive Services to Individuals and tamilies who are experiencing
homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, with the option to renew for up
to two (2) additional years, effective July 1. 2020 or upon Governor and Council approval,
whichever is later, through June 30, 2021.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the ai^orily
to adjust budget line items wHhIn the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified. ■ •

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
human SERVICES, HHS: HUftAAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING,-HOUSING-

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number : total Amoutft

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $127,022

•• Total $127,022

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior-to the grant award being issued. Annually: the US Ocpartment of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Program. Notice of
Funding Available (NOFA). competrtlve application process. As part of this process, the
Department Is required to provide HUD with each potential vendor, and'HUD evaluates vendor
applications. Based on that evaluation process. HUD directs the Department to provide grant
awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

the purpose of this request is to provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Program that
delivers' rental assistance and supportive services to Individuals and families who are
experiencing homelessness. Approximately six (6) households, comprised of individuals or
families, at any one time, will be served from July 1. 2d20 to June 30.2021.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sunuhu
end the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The VofKlor will facilitate movement of participants into sustained permanent housing
wi}lle providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants* abilities to live more independently. The .U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development established the Continuum of Cere concept to support communities in their efforts
to address the problems of housiiig and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and
strategic manner.-

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following methods and tools: '
•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual

agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic irrformaiion and income
and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• Reports that are available through the timely and accurate entry of data into the New
.Hampshire Homeless Management Information System.

As referenced In Exhibit A.. Revisior\s to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1
Paragraph 1.2. of the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding.'
agreemertt of the parties and Governor and Council approval.

.  : ■■-.•'Should the Governor and Council not.authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available; leaving vulnerable individuals and families in
unsafe or deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally., if data is not collected, as required
by these contracts, the Department will be incompliant with federal regulations, which could result
in a loss of federal funding for these and'olher types of homeless and permanent hbuslno
supportive services. . , ®

Area served: Counties of Carroll. Coos, and Grafton.

Source of Funds: CFDA«14.267, FAIN#NH0120T1T001900

■In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds wilt not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shibinette
Commissioner

The pepcrtment of fltoUh and Human Seruica'Miuion it (o Join eommunititi and familiet
in providing opportuniiiet for alittAo to aehievt health and indeptndtnet.
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FORM NUMBER PO? (version 12/11/2019)

SubJeci:_I^cnnanenl Supportive Housing II Program (SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01)

Noiicc: thii ogrcemcni «nd all of its aiiodimenis shall become public upon submission lu CcAvnior end
Exccuiive Council for approval. Any infornuiion that is private, confidcniial or propsictar)-musi
be clearly idenilftcd to the agency and agreed to in uriiing prior lo signing the contraci.

agreement

The State of New; Hampshire and the Controctor hereby muajolly agree as follov*-$:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATiON.

i.l Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Dcpanmcnt of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

I..1 Conirbcior Name

•T"-Counry Community Action Program, Inc.

l.d Contractor Address

30 Exchange St.

.Berlin, NH 03570.

I.-3 Cflniracior PItonc

Number

(603)752-7001

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-792?-

102-500731

1,7 Completion Date

June 30. 2021'

I..8 Price Limilation.

5127,022

1.9 Coniraviing Oflflccr for State Agatcy

Nathan D. SVltiie, Director

I.IO SiBic Agency Telephone NuntbeV

(603) 27!-9631.

1.11 Cohiroaw Signature 1.12 Name and Tiilc'of'Coniractctf Signatory

, Ort'cS GytoJrwt

I.IJ StateXgcncySignature ' '

Date: 6/4/20

1.14 Name and Tiil^ of State Agency Signatory

Christine Sanlaniello, Director, DEHS

1.15 Approval by ihc N.H. Dcpanmcnt of Adniinisiroiion. Division of Personnel (7/flp;j/»Vo/)/c)'

Uy; Director. On:

1.16 Approval byihe Attorney General (Form. Snlwiahcc and Execution)

. By: Catherine Pinos On: 06/09/20

1.17 Approval by the Gnvecmor and.Uxccutivc.Cmmcil fif opiiHaibh)

■  G&C hem number: ' G&C Mcciirig Date:
s

Page 1 of4
Coiuro'cior Iniiials _

Date'.^>(1 MR)
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFOOiMEO. TKc Siaic of New
Hampshire, ociing ihrouj^i the agency idcniifieO in|block. I.)
("Siaic"). engages contracior identifted in block 1.3
("Conitaciw") 10 perform, and the Coniracior shall perform, ihc
u-ork ur sale of goods, or both, identified ami more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B u-hich is incorporated
herein by refefcnce ("SerNnces").

3. EITFECTIVE OATE/C.OMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notuithsnnding any pronsion of this Agrcemem m the
contrary, and sub»jrci to the Approval of the Cox-cntor o»d
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifnpplicBblc,
thi.t Agreement, and ell obligations of the parties hcrcunder. shall
become 'elTcctlve on the date ihc .Govenjor and Executive
Council approve this A^ccmcni as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is rciquircd, in wiiich case the Agrccmoit
shall becunte effcciive on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as .dtowm in block 1.13 (''Effective Daie").^
3.2 If the Contractor crutimcnccs the Scn'ices prior to the
EITcciiNX Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the EfTeciive Date shall be perfonned at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrccmcni doea not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Cuuiravtur,
including wnihout limiitition. any iibligotiun to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Scrnccs performed.
Contractor must coipplcic a!) Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7,

4. COMDrnONAL NATUREOF ACRKE.MENX
Notwithstanding any provision .of this Agreement lo the
conirjry. all obliguiioits of the State licrcuitdcr. Including,
without limiiaiion. the cominuancc of papnenis hcrcunder, arc
c<)n(ingci»i upon the A\ailabl1iiy and continued apprnpriaiion of
fimds aflcctcd by nny siutc or federal Icgislnliw or c.xceuiive

' action that reduces, climinaicj or otherwise tnodifics the
appro|maiion or availability of funding fur this Agrcemem and
the Scope for Services provided in F.XHIRIT B, in nhoic or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any puymctiis
hcrcunder in excess of inch ov-ailoblc op}vopnaicd fxittd.s. Irt the
event of u reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State sliall have the right to wnthholtl payment until inch funds
become available, if ever, nnd. shall have the right to reduce or
icnninuic the Services tinder this Agrecmeiti iinntcdroicly u|>ott
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tcnuinaiion.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or, source'io iheAt\-oum idcnilficd in block I.C in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavoilabl'e.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE MMITATION/
PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, meiliod of payment, and terms of paytiicnl
ftfc idcniificd.and more pnniculorly described in HXHIOIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Siaie of the contruct price sltall be ilic
only and the complete reimbursement to the Cohtrocinr for all
c.vpenscs, of Nvhflic\*cf nature incurred by the Contrarior in the
performance hereof, and ..dinll be ilic uiiiy and the compU-ic

compensation to ihc Contractor fur ihc Services. The State.shell
have no iiabiliiy to the Contractor other than the eoniraci price.
5.3 Tlie State rescT^•cs the. right to offset from any amount.*
(Miterwisc payable to litc Contractor under this Agrcemem those
liquidated antuunis required trf pernuii^ by N.H. RSA f»0;7'
through RSA 8(I:7-c or my other provision chaw.
5.4 Notwiihyanding any provision in this Agreement to the
cunirary. and noitvithsanding uiie.xpevicd clK-umsunevs. in no
event shall the total of ail paymenis outhurizcd, or actually mudc
itaeunder, e.teeed the Price Limliaiinh set forth in block 1.8.

6. CO.MPLIANCE BY CON! RACfOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the pcrlormaiiee of ilic Services, the
Coniracior shbll comply with all applicsblc sieiuics. laws,
regulations, and orders of federal.'state, county or municipal
aiiihoriiics whicit impo.*c any ohiigniinn or duty upon the
Coniracior, including, bur not limited to. civil rights nnd equal
employment enjpurtunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement i.*
funded in any pan by monies of the United Stala. the Coniracior
shall comply with all federal c.xecmive orders, rules, regulations
and siuiuics, and with any rules. regubiicMi.* und guidelines as the
State Of the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contrueinr shall also comply wiili all applicable intellectual'
property lows.
6.2'During the term of this Agrecmem. the Commctor stial) not
discriminate ngoinsi employees or oppliconis for cmplo)Tncni
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sc.*, handicap, sexual
ortcniaiion. or notional origin and will take orrmnaii^T action to
prevent siich di.scriminaiion.
6.3. The Coniracior-agrees lo permit the State or United State#
access to nny of the Coniracior "s books, rccordsandaccuunis for
■he purpose ofosccriaining compliance with all rules. rcgulDirons
and orders, nnd the covenants, terms and cunditiiais of iliis
Agreemeiu.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Cunirocior shall at iisowne.spcnie provide alTiicrsnnncI
ncee.ssary to perform the Services. Tltc Contractor warrants,thai
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Sernces. *jnd slitvH be pri^Kriy .licensed -and
otherwise auihoriicd to do so pndcr'ull applicable lawj.
7.2 Unless otherwise aiiihorlzcd in wtiiing. during the lenn of
■his Agreement, and for a period of six (6j months aflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7. ihe Coniracior shall not hire, und
shall not permit any subcouiruclor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cflnri to
Inform the Scnicc# to hire, any person t\1io is a St.Tic employee
or olTieial. who is materially involved iit the procurement,
odministraiion or performance of this Agreemeni. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agrecmcni,
7.3 the Coniruciing OITiccr specified in block l.9.^or his or her
successor, shall be ihc State's rcprescnietivc. In ihcc^tni ofuny
dispute coiiccming the inicqsreiaiion'of ihis Agreement, ihe
Coniraeting OfTiecr's dccision'shnll be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEOIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the follovnng aci5 or nmi.tjinns of ihe
Coniracior fhall constitute nn event of dcfauli hcrcundcr ("Event

nfrxfault"):
S.I.I foilurc lu perform the Services uiisfociorily or on
schedule;

S.1.3 roilurc lusultniii any report rc-quireJ hcrcundcr; omlfur
S.1.3 reiluretoperrorin any uihcr covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
5.2 Upon the occurrence of any Evxin of Default, the State may
tnVe any one, or more, or all. of the fnlluwing aciioits:
8.2.1 the Ccvtracior a wrtncn notice specifying the Event of
Defuuli aitd retfulring it to be remedied »Sihin, in the absence of
a greater or lcs.v;rspcci(icoiinn of lime, thirty (.30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the E^'cni of ̂fauli is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement. elTeviivc i«vo (2) days after gi\-ing the

■ Cuttiracior notice of icrminniion;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrincn notice spcvi tying the Event of
Ocfaull .mil suS|M.Ti(liiig all pa)'nicnls to be made under this
Agrcentcni and ordering thai the portion of the, conimct price
witich Nvould otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lithe its the State
determines that the Comractor has cured the' Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor '
8.2.3 give the Coniracior a wTiiien notice specifying the Itvcni of
Default and set olTflgtunsi any other obligations the State may
owe to (he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any E^'ciii nfOefauli; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a «*Tiitcn notice spccifyiitg the Event of
Default, irctti the Agrcctnent as breached, terminate die
Agrccmott and pursue any of ii.'t remedies at law or iti ee|uiiy, or
both.

S.3< Ko Inilitrv by the State to ctiforce any provisions licrcoi'allcr
any Even! of Default sliali bc dretnud o wuiver of its rijdiis.with
rcga.rd to that Event of.Dcfaull. or Dny,sub.<cqucnl Event of
Default. Ntj express failure to enforce any Event of Dtl'nult shall
be deemed n x^'aivTr of the right of the Stale tu enforce each nnd
all of the jtrovisions hereof upon ony funlier or other Event of
Default on the (tan of the Comrtcior.

9.1KKMINATI0tV,
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8; the Suite may. at its. sole
discretion, tcrminnic Ihe Agreement for any reason, in whole or
ill pan. by thirty (30) days MTiiicn notice to the Comraeiur iliai
the State is exercising its option to icnninatc the Agrccnicni.
9.2 In the cvait of an early termination of this Agreement for
any rc.vsoii other than the .completion of the Scr>'ices. the
Coritroctor shall, at the State's disrrciiou, dclivxr to the

Contracting Onicer. nut btcr ihan fifteen (15) days aftVr the date
olTcrmination, u report ('Tcmiinotion Report") describing in
detail all Serviecs performed, and liie contmei price earned, to
and including the date nf (cntiinaiioit. Tlic form, subject matter,
contchi, and nijmbcr Qf copies of the Termination RciKirt shall
be idcmieal to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIRIT M. In oddiiion, at the State's discretion, the Coniracior
shall, mihin 13 da)^ of notice of early icnitinaiiun, develop and
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submit to the State a Tmnsiiion Plan fnr services under the

Agrccnieni.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFlDE.VTlALI'nv

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agrcemeni. the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during die
performance of, or acquired or dcvxiopcd by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all siiidicjt. reports,
flies, fonnulae, surveys, ntaps. charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, dmwings. analyses, graphic
representations, compulcr prugrums, coinpnicr priniuuls,.notes,
leticrs. inetnorandu.. paper's, and documents, all whether
fml.dtcd or unfinished.

10.2 All dau-i nnd any property which has been received from'
liic State or purchased with funds providcil for thai puqiose
under this Agrcvmem, shall be the property of the State, nnd
sliatl be rcmmcd in the Sinic upon demand or upon icrmin.nion .
' of this Agreement for any reason. >.
10.3 CiMtfidciitiaiiiy ufdaiu shall bi.* govcnuxi by N.H. RSA
chapicr 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior wTiiicn approval of the St.tic.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO rilK STATE. Inihc
. performance of this Agreement the Conimcior is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor ait '
employee uf the State. Neither the Cunirt»etur nur. .tny of its
ofTiCcrs, employees, agents or iiKtnbcrs shall h9\-c authority to
bind the State or reccive nnybcneliis, workers' compeitsation or
uihcr ctnolutncnis provided by the Slate.to its employees.

12. ASSICNiMENT/OELECATION/SUBCOiNTRACTS.
12.1 The Ontirnciitr .shall not as.sign. or otherwise transfer any
inlcrcsi in this AgrcematI without the prior written notice, wliicit
Shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) dsys.prior lu
the assignment, nod u written consetit of the State. For purposes '
of this paragrof^t, V a- Change uf Con.trol shall constitute
.nssignmeoi. ''Change of Comrai" meooj (n) merger,
consolidaiiun. ttr a trunsaciion or saics ufyctulcd transttciions in
which a third party, together with its arfiliates. becomc.s the .
direct or indirect o^x'ner of fifty percent (30%) or more of the
voting slt.-ires or similar equity iiiicrcsis.'uf combined voting
powxr of the Contra.cior. or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the CcHSiroctor.

12.2 None of the Services shall (x subcontract^, by ih(
Cooiruaor without prior wriiioi notice and consent of the State.
The Slate i.< entitled to copies of all tubconiracis end assignment
ngrccmcnts nnd sl).tll nni be biHttid by nny pro\i.<>i>ns contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to tvhirii it is not a
ixriy.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless othcrxtisc e.xcmpted by law,
the Contractor sitall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and cinplo>xcs. from and ogaiivet any .and nil claims,
liabilitie.s and costs for any personal injury or property damoges,

. p.nicni or copsrighi it'iffingcmcni, or other elaints asscrtrd against
the State, its officers orcntpioyccs. which iirisc out of (or which
may he claimed to arise uut oO the acts or ontiss.ion of the
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Cnniracior. or iubconinciuri. includidt; bui noi liniiiCi) lo ihc
negligence, reckles): or imeniionDl conduct. The Sieic diall nut
be liable for en/cosi.i incurred by the Crnirocior arising under
this paragraph 13. K'diwiihsianding the Torcgoing, noiliing herein
uoniaincd shall be deemed to consiiiuic «\vji\>cr of the sovereign
immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby rcscr\'ed to the
Slate, l^is covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
icniiinoiion ur ihii'Agrccincni.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor dioll. ni its sole expense, obtain and
coniuiuvusly inuiniait) in force, and sliall require any
(obcontrocior or assignee to obtain und maintain in force, (he

following Insurance;
>4.1.1 comfncrci.tl general liability insuranvc against all rlaiins
of bodily injury, dchih or prupcny darhtge, in amount# of iioi
less than Sl.000,000 pa occurrence and S2,000,000 nggregaie
of cxccs#: and

14.1.2 special cousc of loss coverage form cdvcring all property
subject to subparagro)th 10.2 herein, in tut emouni not less than
S0% of the u^olc replacement %d1uc nf the property.
14.2 Tlic policies described in siibparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
oti policy fonu.'t. and endorsement# approved for use in the Siatc
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpanment of lnsuroncc. and
issued by in.(iircrs licensed in the State nf New Hamp.shire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Coniroeting OOlccr
identified in bluck 1.9. ur his or her successor, a ccrtirtcaic(#) of
insurance /or all insurance required under this Agrccmchi.
' Cnniracinr .shall utso fumisli to the Coniroeting Officer idcnii lied

in block 1.9, or his of her successor, ccrtilieatcfs) of insurance
for oil rcncNvatfs) of insurance required under this A^ocincni no
lo'tcr than tcit (10) days prior lu the expiration date uf each
insiuantc policy. Tlic ccnificaicfs) of insurance and any
renewals thereof .Mi&ll be otiaclied and axe incorporated licrcin'by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

I.S.I Dy signing this ugrceniait, the Conirnci.or agrees, ccriilics
Slid ws'ironis that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements iSf N.H. RSA chapter 2ii I -A-f" d'c'lvrx"
Co"'/"m.rn/»ii/i .'V-
15.2 To the c.xteni the Ctxttraviur is subject tu the requircntenis
of N.H. RSA ehapicr 2SI-A. Conirqetor sliall mainioin. and
require any subconirnclor or assignee to secure and nuiintoiri.
payment of Workers' Compensation in eonncction uHih
uciiviilc# which theiwrson proposes toundcnakc pursuuniio this
Agreement. The Contractor shall funtish the Cotuiueiing Ofl'icer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her sttcccx.xor. proofof Worker.?'
Cotnpcnsation in the manner described in N.IT RSA chapter
281-A and atty applicable renewalfs) thereof, wltich shall be
aitachod and arc incorporated herein by rcfcrenee. Tlic State
Shall not be responsible for pa)nieni of .any Workers'
Cunipenuiiun premiums or for any other claim ur benefit for
Cuniructor. .or nny subc.uninietor or emplo>tc of Contractor,
which might arise under epplieobic Staie of New Hampshire
Workers' (Com^osation bu^ . In' . cortncciion with the
l>crforinance of ihc'.Scrviccs under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any ntuicc by a pony hereto to the uiher party
shall be deemed to have been duly dclimcd or given at the time
of mailing by cenihcd mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Pusi Office addressed lo the parties at the addresses given in.
blocks 1.2 and l.4;hcrcin.

17. amendment. This Agrccmvni nwy be umcDded, uoivcd
or discharged only by an in.(trumcni in vxTiling sipicd by the
parties hereto end only oRer approval of sii'cli amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Covenior aitd Fxcciiiive Council of
•he Sinie of New Mnmpshirc unless no such approval it required'
under (he circumstances pursuani lo Stotc law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM Tliis Ag/ecmcni sljall
be governed, iniirprcicd.and construed in accordance uiih the
la?vs uf the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon und
ihiirc# to {lic.hencrit of the panics and litcir rc.ipcciivc #iicc&?sof.<
and assigns. The wording used in tliis Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
orconsiruciion shall be applied against or in fas-or of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
inainuincd in New Hampshire Superior Court u-hich shall have
exclusive jurisUiciton iherco.f. '

19. conflicting T.ERMS. In the event of a eonflici
bct?vcco the terms.of this P.37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT

A) andfor ntiaehmenis and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P>37 (a.x nioOined in CXHIHIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The (uriics hereto do nut inlend .to
benefit any third |U>rtie$ and this Agreement shall nut be
construed to cooler any sucli.bcnefit.-

21. HEADINGS. The headings ihruuglmOi the Agreciiiciit arc
for reference purposes only, and the word.? contained therein
shnll in no \my be held to c.xplain, modify, amplify or nid in Ihc
inicrprctalioii, eonsiniction or meaning of the provisions uf this
Agfccincni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the niinclicd EXHIBIT A use incorporated
hCTcin bj'rcfcrcnec.

23. SEVEKrkBILITN'. In the c^rnt any oftlic provisions of this
Agrccnteni arc held by a court of conip^-icni juri.xdiciion to be
qonirary to any staic'or federal law, the remaining provision.<:. of
this Agrecnicm will remain in full force and cITv'Ci.

24. ENTIRE ACREEjMENT. This Agrvcmcni, \v4iidi may be
executed in a number of counierparts. each of wltich shall be
deemed-an original, constituics the entire agreement, and
understanding between the panics, und supersedes all prior
agreements ojtd understandings with rc.spcci to iKc subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servic.es
Permanent Supportive Housing 11 Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. ■ Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
'  amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
,  subject to the approval of. the Governor and Executive Council of the Slate

of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on-July 1,
2020. ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, Is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

.3.2. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council. ,

1.3. Paragraph 12,'Asslgnmenl/Delegalion/Subcontracis. Is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Cor^lractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying Ihe work to be performed
and how corrective action shair'be managed if the subcontractor's

" performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage ihe
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for ur\der this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS.202O:QHS-09-PeRMA-0l EiMM A - R«v(tion» to Standard Conbscl PiOvUton* Conuoclor Irdliati
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

•1.1. The CorHractor shall provide services in this agreement to a minimum of six (6)
households comprised of individuals or families.

'  1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available in the Counties of Carroll. Coos

and Grafton. •

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, ali references to business hours shall mean
•  fvlondey through Friday from (8:00 AM to 4:00 PM), excluding state and federal-

holidays.

1.5., Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b). US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD
Office of the inspector General, and (he Comptroller General of the United-States,

'  or any of their authorized representatives, must have the right of access to all
books, documents, papers, or other records of .the Contractor that are pertinent to
the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required
retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and comply with (he program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and all term.s
artd conditions, and amendments thereto, as set forth in the applicable Notice of
Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application approved by HUD. .

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to the Department of Housing and
Urbao Oevelopment (HUD) regulations outlined in Public Law 102.-550 and 24 CFR
Part 578 CoC Program and other .written, approprlale HUD policies and directives.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management information System (NH HMIS).
or into a comparable database, per 24 CFR 578. Programs shall follow NH HMIS
policy, ihcjuding specific.informaiion required for dala entry,.accuracy of data
entered, and time required for data entry.

1 -.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and -answer all questions related to this
contract from representalives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct
periodic observation and review of performance, activities and an inspection of
recofds and documents.

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of ihis program, which is to facilitate
the movement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to
permanent housing and maxirnum self-sufficiency. .

1.11. The Contractor shall utilize the NH HMIS as the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and actiwties of-shelter and housing programs funded through this control.

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01 ConlfaclOf Inilials Oli
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

EXHIBIT B

1.12. The Contraclof shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Program'that
serves a total of six (6)'households utilizing six (6) scattered site'iapartments in the
Counties of Carroll, Coos and Grafton, with a focus, on families experiencing

.  . . homelessness, or who may have experienced chronic homelessness. The
Contractor shall ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

*1.12.1. Utilization of the Housing First model that ensures: '

1.12.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not Imposed beyond those required
by regulation or statute; and

1.12.1.2. Participation will only termlnalc for the most severe, reasons, after
availaliile options to help a participant maintain housing are
exhausted.

1.12.2. Development of a' stabilization plan and crisis management plan with-the
participant at intake and. at a minimum, annually.

.  1.12.3. Development of an ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services in order to provide assistance to the participant with obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

1.13. The Contractor shall participate in its regional and statewide Coordinated Entry
system. *' ' •

1.14. -The Contractor shall establish arid maintain standard operating'procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR.57d and shall
establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUO and -BHS.lo delermine
Contractor requirenient compliance, including:

1.14.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor shall maintain the following
documenlalion related to establishing and ope'rating a CoC;

Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor. shall maintain

acceptable evidence of homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR
576.500(b):

1.14.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The Contractor shall
■  maintain records that establish "at risk of homelessness' status-of

each individual or family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576;500(c); and

1.14.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The
Contractor shall maintain documentation of each program pariicipant
who moved, to a different CoC due to imminent threat of further

domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as
defined In 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain
documentation that includes, but is not limited to:

1.14.1.3.1. The originalincidence of domestic violence, dating violence.
sexual assault, or stalking, ohiy If the original violence is not
already documented In the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the housing or^ervlce
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

EXHIBIT B

•<v-)

provider; a teller or other docurhenlatlon from a vicllm
service provider, spdal worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental healih provider, or other
professional from whom the victim has sought asslsiance;
medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written cenincalion by the program participant to
whom the.violence occurred or by the head of household;

•  and . • *

■  .1.14.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic
violence, dating violence, or sexual assault or stalking,
which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence.
This may be written observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter, or other documentalion from a victim
service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, merital' health provider, or olher
professional from t^om the victim has sought assistance;
current restraining order;'recent court order or other court
records; law enforcement report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the violence or family
members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text messages, and social
media posts; or a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of
household.

1.14.1.4. Records of Annual Incomei For each prc^ram participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by. the program participant, the Contractor shall keep the
following documentation of annual income: -

1.14.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by
the Contractor;

1.14.1.4.2. Source ddcuments. which may include the most recent
wage statement, unemployment compensation statement,
public benefits, statement, and bank statements for the
assets held by the program participant and income received
before the date of the evaluation;.and

1.14.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a
written statement by a relevant third party, which may
include an employer or a governmeni b'enefils administrator,
or (he written certification by the Contractor's irilake staff of
the oral verification by the relevant third party of the Income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

SS-202'0-BHS-0<i-PERMA-01 Contfacliv IniHala ■
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EXHIBIT B

1.14.1.'4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party
verification are unobtainable, the written certification by the
program" participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over
the three (3) month period following the evaluation.

1.14.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence ol
homele'ssness status or at-rlsk-of-homelessness status, 'as

applicable, the Contractor shall.keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.14.1.5.1. The: services and assistance provided to that program
participant, including evidence that ' the Contractor
conducted an annual, assessment of services for those
program participants that ren^ln in the program for more
than a year and adjusted the service package'accordingly,
and including case management services as provided in 24
CFR578..37(a)(1)(li)(F):and

1.14.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement m 24 CFR 578.91.

1.14.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor shall retain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b).
including inspection repons. • ' -

1.14.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shall document.the types of
supp.ortive services.provided under the Contractor's program and the
amounts spenf on those services. The Contractor shall keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually and-
that (he service package offered to program participants was adjusted

■ as necessary.

1.15. The.Contracior shall maintain records that document compliance with:

1.15.1. The Oroanizational conflict-of-interest reouirements In 24 CFR 578.95(c);

•1.15.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
(  578.95(b); and

1.15.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95fd).

1.16. The Contractor shall develop. Implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-
of-i'nteresl policy .thai complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including
records supporting any exceptions to (he personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

1.17.. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.17.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
5.78.75(g);

-  1.17.2. . The Faith-based Activities requirerhents, in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b): ly

$S-2020-eH$-09-PERMA-0l Conlraetof Inillais
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1.17.3. Affirmatively Furtherino Fair HousinQ by maintaining copies of all markeling.
outreach, and other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program
in accordance with 24 CFR 578.93(c):

'  1.17.4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

'1.17.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records
as specified by HUO; and

1.17.6. Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR .85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1.18. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
■ requirements for HMIS dala (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.18.1. All records containing protected identifying Information of any individual or
family who applies for Continuum of Care assistance are to be kept secure
and confidential;

1.18.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
Continuum of Care funds, are not to be made public, except with written.
authorization of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.18.3. The adjjress or location of any housing unit of a program participant is not to
be made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the
recipient or subrecipieni and consistent with Slate and local laws regarding
privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.19. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend ail meetings or
trainings requested by BHS. including irainirig in dala security and confidentiality. •
according to .slate and federal laws. To'the extent possible. BHS shall -notify the
Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance
of each meeting. . . ^

1.20. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thir1y.(30) days of
the change.

1.21. In the event of early lermination ol the Agreement, the Contractor'shall, within 15
days of ndllce of early termination, develop and submit to" the State a Transition
PlanTor services under the Agreement, Including but not llrniled to. identifying the
present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and .
eslablishing a process to meet those needs.

1.21.1. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but no! limited
to, any Information or data requested by the State relative to the termination
of the Agreement and Transition Plan 'and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State, as
requested.

1.21.2. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but' not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement, are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted p.rovider^or the

SS-2020-BMS-09-PERMA-01 Coo.lrecto IniliaSs
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State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services'in the Transition Plan.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other
affected Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the

'  proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State, as
described above.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.2; The Contractor shall comply with all. Exhibits 0 through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. ' The Contractor shall submit, an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
• Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion Dale on the

■ , form required, or specified, by the Department.
3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the APR is suljmilted to:

■ NHDHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street-

Concord. NH.03301
\

3.3; The Conlraclor shall ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results of
the Project Activities, consistent with the format prpposed in the Contraclpr!s
Project Application,"submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA).

3.4. The Contractor shall submit other reports as requested.by the Department In
compliance with NH HMIS policy. ^

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall aclively and regularly collaborate with Ihe Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery arid
policy based on successful outcomes. Including annual performance monitoring of-
all programs. • ■

■I 4.2. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as set.forth in all-
applicable HUD regulations including, but not limited to:

4.2.1. 24 CFR Part 578 CoC Prograni; •
4.2.2-. Public Law 102-550; and

4.2.3. CoC approved performance measures for annual monitoring.

5. Additional Terms
5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

SS-^O^O-BHS-OS-PERMA-OI Contractor IrtilialS.
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5.1.1. The Conlractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal l^lslation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)
5.2.1. the Conlractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the

language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proHciency and/or hearing Impairment to ensure meaningful access
to their programs' and/or services wthin ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, pressreleases, research reports aruj other materials
prepared during or resultirig from the performance of the services of the
Contract shall Include the following stalemerit. 'The preparation of'this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale of New
Hampshire. Department of Health'and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and
Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under (he cpniract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, dlslribulion or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
rhaterials produced; including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resourcedireclories.

5.3.3.3. Prolocolsorguidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters. ■

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall nol reproduce any materials produced under the
conUact without prior written approval from the Department..

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. - In the operation of any facililies for providing services, the Conlraclor" shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, slate, county and
municipal authorities arid with any direction of any Public Officer or officers

•  pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operalionof the facility or .the provision of the services at
such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the
operaiior^ of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the

• Conlractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In c^^clion

$S-2020-aHS-09-PERMA-01 ConUoclw Inilials,
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with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that, during the term of this Contract the fadlilies shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire
Marshal and the local fire prolection agency, arid shall be In conformance
with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

.  5.5. Eligibility Deternilnations

5.5.1. If the Conlractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals, youth,
■  end/ or family such ellgibidty verifications shall be made in accordance with

applicable federal and stale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies
and procedures.

5.5.2. 'Eligibility verificalions shall be made on forms provided, or required by ihe
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade,'or reissued at
such times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. Ih addition to the verification forms required by the Depariment, Ihe
Cpntractor shall maintain a data file on each-participant of services
hereunder, v^ich file shall include all information necessary to support an
eligibility verification and such other information as the Department requests.
The Contractor shall furnish- the Department with at! forms and
documentation regarding eligibility verifications that the Department may
request or require.

5.5.4. The Conlractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding,
that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all
applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and
that each applicant or re-applicant sl^all be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Depariment regulations.

6. Records

6.1 The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to; •

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the'Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Conlractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance vvtth accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficienlly and property reflect all such costs end
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitalioh. al) ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requlsllions and orders, .vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contribulions. labor time cards,

. payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and ekgibility

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA'01 CorUractof tniliats
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(Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of sen/ice.s and all invoices submitted to the
Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.2. ■ The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by microrilming.
photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds,
are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt
of.final payment by the Contractor, unless records'are otherwise required to.be
maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state or
federal law of regulation.

6.3. During the lerin of this Contract and ihe period for relenlion hereunder, the
Depatlrnenl. the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records
maintained-pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the jnaximum number of
units provided for in the Contract 'and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the ot^ligations of the parties hereunder (except
such obifgations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end
of the term of this Contract and/or sun/ive the termination of the Contract) shall
terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report"

, the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
■ hereunder the Department .shall retain the right, al its discretion,, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Conlinuum of Care (CoC) Program, as
awarded on March 13. 2020. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)

. #14.267, Federal Award Identification'Number (FAIN #) NH0120T1T001900.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient jn accordance
with 2 CFR 200.330.-

2.2. The de minimis indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.414.

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract as" NON-R&D. in accordance with
2 CFR §200.87.

3. Payment shall been a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in
the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line

'  item, as.specified in Exhibit C*1. Budget.

4. The Coritractor shall submit an invoice and required supported documentation in a
form salisfaclory to the Stale by the fifteenlh (15th) working day of the (ollONying
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement' (or .authorized experises
incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed,
dated and returned to the Department In order to initiate payment.

5. The Coritractor shall keep records of their activities related to Oepartrherit programs
and services, and shall provide such records, and any. additional financial
inforrnalion. if requested by the Department to verify expenses.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to housinQSuoDortslnvoices@dhhs.nh.oov or Invoices rhay be rmailed to:

Financial Manager
■ Department of Health arid Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

■ Concord. NH 03301

7. ■ The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available, subject.to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form Number P-37
ofthis Agreement.

8. ■ The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than lhirtyv(30) days after the
contract corhpletion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

9. The C.ontractor must provide the services In Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

Ti^'Counly Comrmjfilly Action Pfogrem. inc. e>»^C Conuwic* irisiBU,
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10. The Contraclof agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in y^ofe
or in part, in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit 8;
Scope; of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or Stale-law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or If the said services or products have not been satisfactohly
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P.37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the.price limitation and adjusting encumbrances
between Slate Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may
be made by written agreement of.both parties, without obtaining approval of the

■ Governor and Executive Council, if need.ed and justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Conlracibr is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if.any of
the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during
the most recently completed fiscal year.-

.13.1.2. . Condition B - The.Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to.the •
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

•  13.1.3. Condition C • The Cbntractor is a public company and required by
Security and.Exchange Commission (SEC) regulatioris to submit an. •
annual financial audit

13.2. If Condition A.exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the dose of the Contractor's fiscal year,
conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, 'S.ubpart F
of the Uniform Admimstrative Requirements. Cost Principles, -and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards,

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists,'the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close
of the Contractor's .fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from
the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source,
may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by.
an independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination •
indicates the, Contractor is high-risk.

sViL
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13.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Conlracl, It is
-  understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable

for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all
payments made .under the Contract to which exception has'been taken, or which
have been disallowed because of such an exception.

14. Project Costs:

14.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean
all expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor iri the performance
of the Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable
for payment in accordance-with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from lime to. time and with (he
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

14.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578.39 through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five

• program components: permanent housing; .transitional housing: supportive
services only; HMIS; and,-in some cases, homeless prevention. Administrative
costs are eligible for- all components. All components are subject to the
restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities In a single project
found in 24 CFR 578.87(c).

15. fvlatch Funds:

15.1. The Contractor shall- provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD
regulalions and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

15.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

15.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions-from other
sources. Cash match must be used for the cost of activities thai are eligible
under subpan D of 24 CFR 578. The Contractor shall:

15.3.1. • Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to
satisfy the match requirernent in 24 CFR 578.73';

15.3.2. Ensure records Indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each
matching contribution Is counted;

15.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values
of third party in-kind contributions were derived; and

'15.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services
that -are supported by (he same methods used to support the
allocation of regular personnel costs.

Tfl'County Communily AcUon Pfogram. inc. Exhtoiic Conif»tio« inWtU.
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16. Pavmentof Proiecl Costs:

16.1. The Conlractor shall only be reimbursed for ihose costs designated as eligible ■
and allowable costs as slated in Section 18. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit C. The
Conlraclor rnust have written approval from the Stale prior to billing for any other
expenses. •

16.2. Payment of Project Costs shall b'e made through the utilization of funds a?
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title

•  XIV Housing programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
•Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public
Law 102*550). in an amount not to exceed as specified in Forrh P-37, General
Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation. ̂

17. Review of the State. Disallowance of Costs:

17.1. At any lime during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the
Annual, Perforrriance Report. Termination Report of Audited Financial Report,
the Stale may" review all Project Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all
payments made to dale.

17.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written .notice specifying the disallowed ••
expenditures, inform the Conlraclor of any such disallowance.

17.3. If the State disallows.costs for which'payment has not yet been made, it shall
refuse to pay such.costs. Any anwunts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to...
this Agreement are subject to recapture.

18. Expense Elioibililv

18.1. Op.erali.ng Expenses:

18.1..1. Eligible operating expenses include:

18.1.1.1. f\^aintenanqe and repair of housing;

18.1.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including properly and car);

18.1.1.1 Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement o.f major systems
of the housing (provided that the payments must be based on the

- useful life of the system and expected replacernent cost);

18:1.1.4. . Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent
of the units or area Is paid for with grant funds;

18.1.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and wate.r; and

18.1.1.6. Furniture and equipfT^enl.

18.1.2. Ineligible costs include:

18.1.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

.. ^
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i
1B.1.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only

facilifies; and

18.1.2.3. ■ Maintenance and repair,of housing where the costs of maintaining
and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

18.2. Supportive Services

18.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with ail HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating in the
perrnanent housing program. ■

'18.2.2. Eligible costs shall include:

l"8.i2.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment
required by'578.53(a) (2);

18.2.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-lime nxiving costs
are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

18.2.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arrangirig.
coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services
to meet the needs of the program participani(s) are eligible costs; •

18.2.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers, for children from families
experiencing homelessness, including providing meals.and snacks,.
and comprehensive and coordinated deveiopmerital activities^are
eligible;

18.2.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic
educational skills are eligible; .

18.2.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of eslabfishing
.and operating employment assistance and job. training prograrns
are eligible, including classroom, online and/or computer Instruction,
on-lhe-job instruction, sen/ices that assist individuals in securing
employmerit,-acquiring learning skills, and/or increasing earning
potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to program
particip.anl.s in employment assistaiice and job.training programs is
also an eligible cost;

18.2.2.7. Food. T-he cost of providing meals or g.roceries" to program
participants.is eligible;

18.2.2.8. Housing search .and counseling serviced Costs of assisting eligible
program participants to locate, obtain, and ..retain suitable housing
are eligible;

18.2.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are .the fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by pefson(s) under the supervision of licensed
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attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that interfere with
homeless individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing;

16.2.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of leaching critical life management
skills that may never have been learned or have been lost during
course of physical or mental illness, domestic violence, substance
abuse, and homelessness are eligible. These services must be
necessary lo assist the program participant to function
independently In the community. Component life skills training are
the budgeting of resources and money management,, household
management, conflict management, shopping for food and other
needed items, nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent
training;

18.2.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are provided-by. licensed

professionals. Component services are crisis interventions;
counseling; individual.' faimiiy, or group Iherapy sessions; (he
prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of
therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems;

18.2.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct-outpatient
treatment of medical conditions when provided by licensed medi.cal
professionals;

18.2:2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the
purpose of providing immediate support and intervention, as well as
identifying polenlial program participarits, are eligible;'

18.2.2.14.. Substance abuse irealmeni services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpalienl treatment, group and
individual counseling, and drug testihg are eligible. Inpatient
deloxificalidn and bther inpatiehl drug or alcohol treatment are
ineligible;

18.2.2.15. Transportalion Services are descnbed in 24dFR 570(e) (15);
18.2.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility

deposits. Utilitydeposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies:

18.2.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in .24CFR-
' 578.53(e) (1) - (16) of this section is being directly .delivered by (he
recipient or subrecipienl. eligible costs for those services are
described i.n 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

16.2.2.16. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs-under this
section is not an eligible cost of providing supportive services using
Continuum of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of

Trt-County Communily Action Proorom. Inc. Emibnc Corxiaciortnuiati
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obtaining professional licensure or certifications needed to provide
supportive services are not eligible costs: and

• 18.2.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent
for program participants who are unaccompanied horneless youth;
persons living with HIV/AIOS; and victims.of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual .assault, or stalking.'

18.3. Rental Assistance

18.3.1.. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless.individuals
and families. '

18.3.2. Renlal assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit
receiving rental assistance or operating-assistance through other federal.
State, or local sources.

18.3.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 5.78'.51. and maybe:

18.3.3.1. • Short term, up to"3 months of rent; •

18.3.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or-

18.3.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

18.3.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rent; ,

18.3.5. An advance payment of the last month's' rent may be provided to the
landlord, In addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's
rent.

18.3.6. Rental assistance-will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable;
as determined by the Contracidr, in relation to rents being charged^for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management -and maintenance of each
unit.

18.3.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month's rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only:. Property damages rnay be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

18.3.8. Housing must be In compliance with all Stale and Ideal housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in" which the. housing is
located regarding the conditldn of the structure and operation of the'
housing or services.

Tri-Coun!y Convnunlty Aclion PfOflram. Inc. 'EinibHC Cmiiocior inhlBtt.
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18.3.9. The Contractor shall provide one of the following types of rental assistance:
Tenan(*bdsed, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as
described in 24 CFR 578.51.

18.3.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which

program participants choose housing of an appropriate size In which
to reside.. When n.ecessary to facilitate the - coordination of
supponive services, recipients and subredpients' may require

' program partidpants to live In a specific'area for their entire period
of participation, or in a spedfic structure for the first year .and in a
specific area for (he remainder of their period of partidpalion. Short
and medium terrh rental assistance provided under the Rapid Re
housing program component must be tenant based rental
assistance.

18.3.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between th'e recipiehl and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be
a private, nonprofit organization; or a comrhuniiy mental health,
agency established as a public nonprofit organization. Program
partidpants must reside in housing owned.o.r leased by the sponsor.

18.3.9.3. .Project-based rental assistance Is provided through a contract with
the owner of an existing structure, where the owner .agrees to lease
the subsidized units to program participants. Program participants
will not retain rental assistance if they move.

18.3.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistaince: program participants must enter into a lease agreement
for a term of at least one year, which is terminable for .cause. The
leases must be automatically renewable upon expiration for terms
that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice by

' either party.

18.4. Administrative Costs:

18.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

18.4.1.1. The Contraclor may use funding awarded under this part, for.the
■  , payment of project administrative costs related to the planning and

execution of Continuum of Care activities. This does hot include

staff and overhead costs directly related to carrying out activities
eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because those costs
are eligible as part of those activities; and

18.4.T.2, Genera) management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall
program managemenl. coordination, monitoring and evaluation.
These costs Include, but are not limited to. necessary expenditures
for the following;

TriXourvly Community Action Progrsm, (nc. - Exhibit C Coni/aciox iniiisii
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18.4.1.3. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or
other staff engage in program administration.

18.4.1.3.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include
the entire salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the
program of each person whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program, involve program administration
assignments, or (he pro rate share of the salary, wages, and
related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor rriay only use one
Of these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the following;

18.4.1.3.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendments to those budgets and schedules;

18.4.1.3.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance svilh
program requirements;

T8.4.1.3.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements
with subrecipienls and contractors to carry out program
activities;

18.4.1.3.1.4. Monitoring program activities for. progress and
• compliance willi program requirements;

18.4.1.3.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the
program for submission to HUD:

18.4.1.3.1.6. Coordinating the solulion of audit and monitoring
findings; • '

18.4.1.3.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related
to the program-submission to HUD;

18.4.1.3.1.8. Evaluating program results against staled objectives;

18.4.1.3.1.9.' Managing or supervising .persons ' whose primary
responsibilities with regard to the program Include such
assignments as those described .in sections
20.5.1.3.1.1. through 20.5.1.3.1.8. above. Exhibit C.
Payment Terms.

•  18.4.1.3!i.10.Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying
out the program:

18.4.1.3.1.11. Administrative sen/ices performed under third party
contracts or agreements, including such services as
general legal services, accounting sen/ices, and audit
services:
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18.4.,1.3.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program, including such goods
and services as rental or purchase of equipment,
insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of of^ce space;

18.4.1.3.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of
providing training on Continuum of Care requirements

.  • • arid atteri'ding HUD-Sponsored Continuum of Care
.  trainings; arid

18.4.1.3.1.14. Environmental review. C.osts of carrying but the
environmental review responsibilities under 24 CFR
578.31.

18.5. Leasino:

When the Conlrector is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds
may be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or
structures, or portions'thereof.'to provide housing or supportive services to
homeless persons for up to three (3) years! Leasing funds may not.be used

■  to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, -their parent
organization, any other related organization(s). of organizations thai are
members of a partnership, where .the partnership owns the structure, unless

■ HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

18.5.1. Requirements:

•  18.5.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part
- of a structure or structures, the rent paid-must be reasonable in
relation to rents being charged fn the area for comparable space. In
addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents currently being charged
by the same owner.for comparable unassisted space.

18,5.1.2.' Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for
individual housing units, the rent paid-must reasonable in relation to
rents being charged for comparable units, taking'into account the
location, size, type. qMSlity, amenities, facilities, and management
services. In addition, the rents may not exceed.rents currently being

.  . charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not. exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

.18.5.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas., and water are included in the rent, these
utilities may be paid from leasing funds. If ulilities. are not provided
by landlord, these utility costs are operating costs, except for
supportive service facilities. If the structure .is being used .as a

. supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a supportive
service cosl.
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18.5.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor
may use grant funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to

' exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance payment of last month's
rent may be provided to the landlord in addition to security deposit
and payment of the first month's rent.

18.5.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements
and subleases are required as specified in 24 CFR 576.77(a).

18.5.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges
and rent from program panlcipants must be calculated as provided,
in 24 CFR 578.77.

18.5.1.7. Program income: Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program Income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.

18.5.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(p)(8)

18.5.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
.comparison to rents charged in the area for similar housing units.
-Documentation of rent reasonableness must be kept on file by the

•  Corilractor.

18.5.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
determined fair market rents. . •

18.5.1.11.- The Coniraclor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not
be given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

18.5.1.12. Property darnages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord
for security deposits.

18.5.1.13. The Coniraclor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

18.5.1.14. Housing must be in .compliance with all State and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention Act,'and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in
v^ich'the housing Is located regarding the condition of the'structure
and operation of the housing or services.

18.5.1.15. The Contractor may charge prograni participants rent and utilities
(heat, hot water); hoy^yer, the .a^^punt charged may not exceed the
maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24 CFR 578.77).
Other-services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet
access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's

. option.

18.5.1.16. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this
Contract, or counted as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly
timesheets.

Tfl'CountyCommunlly Action Program, inc. EsM&hC Conuector iiiUaii,
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19. Contractor Financial Management System

19.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant
funds and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to
funds disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

19.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management syStefn that complies
with 2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system a.s the State may require.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor ideniined in Seciion 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections SlSt-SlSO of the Drug-Free Workplace Aci of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). and further agrees lo have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Seclions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

,Thls ccrtificallon is required by Ihe regulations Im'iptementing Sedtons 5151-5160 of the Doig-Frec
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.-lOO-690.Tllle V. Subtitle 0:41 U.S.C. 701 else.q.). The January 31. .
1989 regulalibns were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certificaiion by grantees (and by inference: sub-granieas and sub-
coniractors). prior Id awiard, that Ihey will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3?! 7.630(c) of Ihe
regulation provides^al a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a StalO
may elect lb make ohe certification to the Oepartmeni In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates (or
each grant during the federal fiscal year covefed by the certification. The certificate set out below is e
material representation oi faci upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards Ihe grant. False
certifrcalion or violation of Ihe certificaiion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension of
lerminalion of grants, or government wide suspension or dcbarmcnt. Contractors using this form should
send it lo: • '

Commissioner

NH Department of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies thai it will or'will continue to provide adrug-free workplace by:
1.1. Poblishinig a slalemcni.nbtifying employees that the unlawful manufaciuro. distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions lhat will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing dnjgifree awareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse Inlhe workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabllilation. and employee essislance" prograrns; and

'  1.2.4. The penalties thai may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violalions
occurring in Ihe workplace;

1.3. Making It a requiremenl (hat each employee lo be engaged In ihe performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying Ihe employee in the slalerr>enl required by paragraph (a) thai, as a condition of
.  employmenl under Ihe grant, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the siatement; and
1.4.2. Notify the .employer in writing of his other conviction for a vioialion of a crirninai drug

statute occurring in Ihe workplace no later than ftve calendar days alter such
convlclion;

1.5. Nolifyfr>g the agency In wriling, within ten caleridar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employee orolherwise receiving actual noiico of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position lilte. to ©very granl
officer on whose grant adivity the convicted employee was working, unless Ihe Federal agency

\jL
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identification number(s) of each effected grani;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
s'ubparagreph 1.4:2. with res'pecl to any employee who Is so ̂ victed
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel aclion against such an emptoyee. up Ip.and including

termination, consistent with (ha requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to psriiclpaie satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program epproved (or such purposes by a Federal. Stale! or locat health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate.agoncy;

1.7. Making a good faith effort lo continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Imptementation ol paragraphs 1.1. 1.2. 1.3.1.4. 1.5. a'i>d,1.6.

S

2. The grantee may insert in the space providod below the site(s) for the perforrnance of work dono in
connection with the specific gra'nl. j

Placo ol Performance (street address, pity, county, slate, zip code) (irst each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified.here.

Vendor Name.Tf'.- tWC-

Date . OtAName:

On-.cA £il^Vv<.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Idehllfled In Section \ .3 of the Geherei Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
Section 319'0f Public Law lOt-121. Government wide Guidance for New ResthcUons on Lbbbylrvg. and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the .Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CertiTtcalion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN-SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indlceto oppllcebie program covered);
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tiile IV-A
'Child Support Enforcemetvi Program under Title (V>0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medica'id Program urtder Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Oevelopmenl Block Grant under Title IV

I

The undersigned certifies, lb the best of his or her knowledge arid belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behati of the urvdorsigned. to
' any person for infiuenclng or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member

of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of e Member.ol Congress in
connection with the awarding ol any Federal contract, contihual'ion. renevs^l. amertdment, or

'  rhodi'ncation of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific meiitian
sub*granlee or subcontractor).

2. II any funds other than Federal appropriated funds h'aye been paid or will be paid to any person for.
influencing or atlempUrig to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member ol Congress in connection wilh this;
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-g/aniee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall cornpleie and submit-Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to.
Report Lobbying. In accordance with Its instructions, attached and Ideniifted as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigrved shall require that (he language of this certification be Included in the award
documeni for sulvav/ards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, arid cooperative agreements) end that' aQ sub-recipients shall certify end discloso accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when (his transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fells to file the. required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than SlOO.OOO for
'each such failure.

Vendor Name: To-

Dale Name:

Title: ̂

EiMblt E - Ceninceilon ReQsrdlne'lctibytoe Vendor inltlth
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendo.r Idemiried in Seciioh, 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of'
Executive Olfice of (he Presideril, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding OebarmenI,
Suspension, end Olhcr ResponsibiBly Matters, and further agrees to have the-Contractor's
representative, as identiried In Sections 1.11 and t.i2 of the General Provisions execute the following
Ccruricaiion:

INSTRtJCTlONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. 6y signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective prirhary participani is providing the
cenificetion set out betcw.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certiricaiion required below will not necessarily result in denial
of pariicipailon in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certirication. The certification or explanation wiD be
considered in coniiection-wilh the NH Department of Health and Human Services.' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transactio.n. • »

3.. The ccriiricaiio'n in this clause is a m'aterial representation of fact upon which reliance was pieced
when DHHS 'determlr\ed to enter into this transact^.. If it is later determined that the prospective

■  primary participant kriowlngly rendered an erroneous certiricaiion, in addition to other remedies,
evaitable to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaclion''lor cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submiiiod if at any lime the,prospective primary participant lee.ms
that its certiflcalion was erroneous wtieri submitted or'has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. • the terms "covered Iransacllon." '!debarred.' "suspended.' "ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
transaclidr),' "participant." "person," "primary covered Iranseclion." "principal.' 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded.* as'used in Ihis clause, have Ihe.meanings set out in the Deriniiions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospeclive primary participani agrees, by submitting this proposal (cortlract) that, should the
'  proposed covered Iransaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into'any lower tier covered

transaction with a person vyhp is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in (his covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant turther agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include Ihe
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding OebarmenI. Suspension.-lneligibliily'and Voiunlary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transections.' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that 11 Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involunlerily excluded
from iho cove.red trensaclion. unless it knows that Ihe certificelion is erroneous. A perticipani may ,

-  d.eclde the m.eth.od and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. ,Each
participani may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement Ljsl (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a' system of records
In order to fender in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

CUOWyilBM)
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inrdrmalion of d parttcipani is not required to exceed thai which is normally possessed by a pnjdcnt
person In the'ordinary course oi business dealings. .

1Q. Except for transections authorized under peragreph 6 of. these Ihstruclions. if-a participani in a
- covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspend^, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addillon to other remedies available lo the Federal governmcni. OHHS may terminate this irensaclion
forcaiiseordefeuli. .

PRII^ARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary padicipanl certiHes lo ihe.best of it's knowledge and belief, (hat it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, sbspended. proposed for'debarment, declared ineligible, or-

v'oluniarity excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depanmeni or agency;
11.2.. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In ,
connection with obtaining, elle.mpltng lo obtain, or performing a pubbc (Federal. Stale or local)

'  transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes-or co.mmjs'sl.on of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsiricalion or destruction of
records, making fabe stalemenis, or receiving'Stplen properly:

11 .-3. are not presently indicted for olhcrwise crimlnaWy o' civilly charged by a governmental enllly
(Federal, .Stele or local) .with' commission of any of the offenses ehumeraled in paragraph (l)(b)
of ihls certification; end

.  11.4. have not within a thr^e-year period preceding this aipplicatiori/proposal had one or more public
K^hsaclio.ns (Federal, Stale or ibcel) terminated for cause or defauli.

12: Where, the pro'speclive primary patlidpanl is unable lo certify to any of the slalernents in this
certification, such prospective partidpani shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing e.nd submltling this lovveV tier proposal (contract), the prospeciive lower tier participant, as
defined in 45.CFR Parl'76. certifies to the 't>e$t of its kno^dge and belief (hat it and its. principals:'
13.1. are not presently deberred. suspended, proposed'for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voturitarlty.excluded from pariidpalion in this Iransactidii by any federal departmer^l or agency.
13.2. where the prospeciive lower liQr participant Is unable lo.cerilfy to any of the above, euch

prospecti.ve pariicipeht shall ailach an explariation lo this proposal (contraci).

14. The prospeclive lower (ier.panicipant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled .'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibliity. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transaclions.' wilhourmodiftcailon in.ali lower tier covered
Iransaclions'and in all sclicjialipris for tower'lief covered transactions. , '

Vendor

Dale I \ Name: TJetiyxAV
T-iUd:

JcnWari
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CERTIFtCATtON OP COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONOlSCRlMINATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAtTH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor ideniified in Section 1:3 of ihe General Provisions agrees by signature of .(he Contrecior's
represenlative as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.l2of Ihe General Provisions, to execute the following
certiticalion:

Vendor will comply, and wit) require any subgrantcos or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlrvation requiremenls. which may Include:

•. tha Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding urider this statute from discriminating, either in employment precilces or in
the delivery of services or l;>enefits, on (he basis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act
requires cehain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Juslice OelinquerKy Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obltgab'ons of the. Safe Streets Act. Recipient^ of federal funding under this
statute are prohlbtled from discriminatirig. either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of .race, color, religion, natcnai origin, and sex. The Acl includes Equal
Employment Oppoiluniiy'Plan requiremenls:

• (he Civ'd Rights'Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal rmancial
assistance from discriminating on Ihe basis of race, color, or national origiri in any program or activity);

. the Rehabiiilalipn Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial,
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disebility, in regard to employment end the dofrvery of
services or benefits, in any program ci activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibiis
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons .wiih dis'abiliiies in employment. Slate and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, end transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683.1685-66). which prohibits
. discriminalipn on Ihe basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- Ihe Age Discriminalion Acl of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Seclioris 6106-07). which prohibits discriminelion on Ihe
basis of age In programs or aclivliies receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Deparlmenl of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnalion; Equal Employment Opportuniiy;.Roiicies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal proleclion of (he laws for faith-based and comrnunity
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and pollcy-maKing
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Oepdrtment of Justice Regulations > Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Wlilstleblovyer proteciions 41,U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) Ihe Pilot Program lor
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblower Prelections, which prolecis employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is e material representation of fact upon which reliance is pieced when the
agency awards (he grenl. False ceriincslion or violation of (he certification shall be grounds for
suspension of paymenis. suspension or termination of granls. or government wide suspension or .
debarment.

Exh^ll G
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In (be even! a Federal or Stale court or Federal,or State administrative agency makes a llndtng of . •
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nalional origin, or sex
against a reclp'ienl of funds, (he recipient wiD'forward a copy of (he firvjirtg to (he Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contraciir^g agency or division within the Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services, and
to Ihe'Oepartmertt of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

'

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represenfallve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provisions, lo execute the following
ceritncatlon:

1. 6y signing and 'submitting this proposal (co'nlracl)'the Vendor agrees to cdmply with (he provls'ions
indicated above.

Vendor NameiT^^-Co^^

Date Nanie:^?«Sw^ *Rc>ip\\\ord
Title:ceo

ExNbli G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103'227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro>Chlldren Act of 1994
(Acl). requires lhal smoking not be permitted in -any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entily and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services io children under the age of 16. If the services are funded by Fedorol programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The

.'law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, faciiilies funded solely by
Medicare.or Medica'td funds, and portions of faciiilies used for inpaiieni drug or alcohol treaimeni. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
SlOOO per day and/or the imposition of an admlnlstrsUve complionco order on the responsible entity. ,

The Vendor Idenlined in Section 1.3 ot-the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Coniraclor's
representative as identiried in Sacbon l.lt arid 1.12 of the General Provisions, lb execute.the followtng
cerlirication: ^

1. 8y signing end submilllng this contract, the Vendor agrees to mako reasonable effods to comply with
ail applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Ad of 1994.

Vendor Name: Tri^Cbon^

Date ^ \;\7 Namei^^vu,
Title:

EKhIM H - Conir«cslionR»g«rding . Vsndor Initials
Envlronmsnii) Toteceo Smoko
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■ HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

I*

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to '
comply with the Health Insurance'Portabiliiy and Accountability Act. Public Lew 104-191 and-
with the Standards for Privacy and Security.of Individually Identifiable Health Inforrfiation. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" stiall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
. Entity' shall meah the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Heallh and Human Services..

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the sarne meaning as the term "Breach".in secti.on 164.402 of Title 45.-
.  Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section' 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Fed.eral Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meanino given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.

Code of Federal Regulations.'

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have ihe same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45, CFR Swtionl 64.501.

e. "Data AQgreoation' shall have the.same meaning as Ihe term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 154,SOT.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501..

*

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Heallh
Act. TItleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 S 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Ideniifiable Heallh
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

t. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'indiyiduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and s.hairinclude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance wilh 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the.United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the sarrve meaning as the term "protected health
information.' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from Of on behalf of Covered Enlity. J

V20U Eihlbil I ■ CQnlfac4w Inlliali
Haillh Inturanct Portabiliiy Act
Byalnets Astodale Agroeffloni
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1. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'require'd by law' in 45 CFR
Section 154.103.

m. "Secretarv'shatI mean the Secretary of the Oeparlment of Health and,Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of EleclronicProtected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments thereto..

o. Unsecured Protected Health Informaiion" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or-endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. •

p. Other Definitions - AH terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R.- Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended froni time to time, erid the
.HI,TECH
Act. . •

(2) -Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infonnatlon.

a.' Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected'Health
Informaiion (PHi) except as reasonably necessary^to provide (he services outlined under
Exhibit A of llie Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to ail
its directors, officers, employees and ag'ents.-shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manrier. that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business'Assc^iate may use or disclose PHI;
.  t. ' For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

It.' 'As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
' ■ III. Fordata aggregation, purposes, for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business .Associate' is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
^  third'party..Business Associate must obiain, prior to making any.such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentiatly and
used or further disclosed -only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the KIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to (He extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. . The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PH) In response to a
request lor disclosure'on the basis"(hat it is required by law, vyithout first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the .disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

J/30t4 EthlbU I ContnKlo< Idlials
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Associate shaii refrain from disciosing ihe PHi untii Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. if the Covered'Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Ruie. the Business Associate
shali be bound by such addilior\al restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of ;
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
alter the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protetied
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident thai-may have art impact on the

.  protected health Information of the Cover.ed Entity. • . ,

b. • The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when 11 becofnes
aware of any of the above situalions. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limiled to: . •

•0 The nature and extent of the. protected health information involved, including the
types of idenlifiers and the likelihood of re>identlficalion;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whorh the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
•  0 Tlie extent to which the risk to the protected health informalion has been

mitigated..

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately reporl the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with ail sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification fRule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI'received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Se.crelary 'for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of iis business associates that receive, use or have
access to'PHI under the Agreement, to agree in wriling to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duly to. return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entily
shall be considered e direct third party beneficiary of Ihe Contractor's business associate -
agreements with Conlracloris intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

a/2014 ExMbll I Cortlfociof iNUefs
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pursuant lo.lhis Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnirication from such
business associates who'shall be governed by standard Paragraph of the standard
conlracl provisions (P-37} of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within Tive (5.) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Busiriess Associate shall make available during normal business hours.at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g.. , Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.'
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Oesignaied Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requiremenis .under 45 CPR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of P.HI or a record about an individual contained in a pesfgnated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity, for •
.amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entily.to fulfill its .
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associale shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered'Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an alt'ounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section

■ 164.528.

j. ' Within ten.(lO) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make-available
to Covered Entity such, information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
lb provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Sectipn 164.528.

k. in (he event any Individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate .shall \yithiri two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwardirtg the
individual's request to-Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associa.te tc-violate HtPAA'and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Busine.ss Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and no.tify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wilhin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreenienl. for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by (he Business Associatd In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or.
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such P'HI arid limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business . j
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity. In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblloatlons of Covered Entity

a. ' Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or llmilation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1.&4.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. .

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under (his Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.5g6or45 'CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promplly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to (he extent lhat such restriction may aflecl Business Asspciate's use or disclosure of
PHi.

(5) Tefmlnatlcn for Cause

lr> addilicn to Paragraph 10. of Ihe standard terms and conditions {P'37) of this
Agreement-the Covered Entity may immediately terminate.Ih.^. Agreement upon Covered

■ Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreernenl set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide en opporlunliy for Business Associate lo cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entiiy.- if^Covered Entity -
deiermineis that neither termlnalion nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definilions and Reauletorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended-
from lime lo lime. A reference in the Agreement, as arnended (o include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section ps in effect or as
amended. '

b. Amendment. Covered Emily and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amerKi the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered •
Enlityto comply with Ihe changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and stale law.

c. Data Qwnershio. The Business Associate acknowledges lhat it has no ownership rights
with respect lo the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoreiation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved'
to permit Covered Enlily lo comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. /
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e. Seoreqation. If ahy term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per$on(s) or circumstance is held'invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be .given eiYect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the-
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I.are declared severable.

f. Survivat. Provisions ih this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
deMi^ciion of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnificalion provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard -lerms. and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination .of the' Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oeparlmenl ol Heall.h and^Human Service's

The Stale

ift-

Signature of Authorized Representative

Christine Santaniello
Name of Authorized Representaliye'

■ ■■ Dire'clof,.DEHS
Title of Authorized Representative

-  6/4/20 ■
Gate

CooAVi CbwnhvMvV TrfXifa^n, iMC ■
Name ofthb Contractor )| ^

iSs*tprized Representative
Name of Authorized Representative

Ort'.et
Title of Authorized Represeniatisre

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFiCATtON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDiNG ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to 0/ greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Octoter 1.-2010.10 report on
data related lo.execulive compensation and essodated ftrst'lier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
inlltal award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total 'award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In acco^ance wltft 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward arid Executive Compensalion Information), the
Department of Health and Human ̂ r^ces (DHHS) must report the following information for ony.
subaward or contract oward subject to the FFATA reporting requiremanit: /
t. Name of .entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number (or grants •
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS d)
10: Total compensalion and names of the top ftve executives if;

10.1. More then of ennual gross revenues are' from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the hionlh, plus 30 days, in which
tha award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor (dentifted in Section 1.3 of the Ger>eral Provisions agrees to.comply wilh the provisions ol
The Federal Funding AccountabUity'and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law -110-252.
end 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Corhpensation Inlormatipn). and further egrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identifted in Sections t.-tt and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute (he following Ccrtincalion:
The below narned Conlraclor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above (o.lhe NH
Department of Health and Humati Servi^s and to comply with ell applicable provisions of the'Federe}
Finenclal Accounlabilily and Transparency Act.

Conlraclor Name: ft

mmfi' • . • NJPaM' • ■
Dald^ I \ Name^^^^t

INC.

Tide:C£o

411ExhIbR J •> C«rtiAcatlon R*Qirdtng ttw FMwil Fufldlne Conl/actOf'inHiib ^ •;
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3^

FORMA
'  /

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he Genera) Provisions^! certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

■ 1. The DUNS number for your entity is: O ^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (i) 80.percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal coht/acts. subcontracts.'
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; -and (2) S23.000.000 or rr>ore In annual

. gross revenues from U.S. federal coniracis, subcontracts, loans, gronts. sub'grants. and/or
cooperativo ogreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access (o information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) .or 15(d) of the Securities.
Exchange'Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.76m(a).-76o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of.
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES, stop-here

. If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly co'mper^ssted officers in your business or
organization ere as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CLvOHKsn lori)
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Ocfinilions

The foDowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In (his document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situalions where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally'identifiable

■  information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected -Health .
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as ihe term "Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Iricidenf shall have the same rheaning "Computer Security
Incident* in'section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. OepaHment

■ of CoiTimerce.""

3. 'Confidential Information* or 'Confidential bate' means all confidential information
■  disclosed by one party to (he other such as all medical, health, financial, public
. assistance benefits and personal informailoh including without limitation. Substance
Abuse' Treatment'Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

-  Conridential Information also includes any and all information owned or-managed by
(he'State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of Ihe DepartmenI of Health and
Human. Services (DKHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted

-  services • ol which coiiection, disclosure, protection, end disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, t^ut Is hoi limited to
Protedied Heallh information (PHI). Perspnal Information (PI). Personal Financial
inforhialion (PFI), Federal Tax Inlormatiori (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and conftdenlial information.

4. "End User* means any. person or entity (e.g.. conlractor. contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, oiher downstream user, etc.) that receives
OHHS dota or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5., 'HIPAA" means the Healih Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act thai potentially violates,an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes atterhpis (ei.lher failed or successful) to gain unauihorized qccess to a.
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of

•  a-system for the processing or storage ol data: and changes to system hardware,
firrhware, or software characteristics wtihoul Ihe owner's knowledge, inslrucl'on. or
consenl. Incider^ts Include the loss of dale through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and. misrouting of physical or ele.Otronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all .of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" mear>s any network or segrrient of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department' of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected .network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the' Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not ad^uaiely secure for the transrnission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidenlial DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') nieans informalion which can be used to distinguish
or trace, an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number; perso.nal
information as deHned in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or yyhen combined with other personal or identifying informalio.n v/hich is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as dale and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information ar45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
•States Oepariment of'Health and Human Services.-

10. "Protected Health Infonmalion" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Informaliori' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

VI. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
•thereto.

•12. "Unsecured Protected Health Inlormatlon" means Protected Health Informalion that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
.unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and' is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidenlial Informalion.

1. The Coniraclor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Furlhef. Contractor.
ir)cluding but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not'
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

-2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Ll!St update 10/09/18 ExhIbilK.
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request (or disclosure on (he basis (hat it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object (o the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies (he Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
reslrictiohs over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy, and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
addilione] restrictions and. must nOt disclose PHI in violation of such additional'

restrictions end must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The .Contractor agrees thai DHHS Data or derivative (here from disclosed to en End
User must only be useO pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. - The Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6.. The Cor^tractor agrees to grant access to the data to (he authorized representatives
of OHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of (hi$-
Contfact.

n. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryptlof). If End Us.er is Iransrriitting DHHS data coritaining
Confidential Data' betvve'en applications, (he Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in ^yber security and (hat said-
applicdllon's encryption capabilities ensure secure' transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks end Portable Siorage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data. '

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to traosmii Confidenliat Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email -addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transrriil Conndentlal
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web sile must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5.- File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
ConndBntlal Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End tJser may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is 'employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Ccnfidential Data via an open

vs. Lail updale >(y09/14 ExhItrilK. Cenlraclor IniUab.
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. wireless' network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless networl^.

■9. Remote l!iser Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Conndenliat Data, a virtual private network (VPN)'must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Proiocol tSFTP). also known as.-Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing en SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
stmcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriaie disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub'fotders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

.  hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTtON AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and anyderlvative of the data for Ihe'duration of (his
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will,have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever-form it may exist, unless,- otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract, To this end. the parties must-

A. Retention

1. The Coriiractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical locaiion requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or doud storage capabilities, and indudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events lhat can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contrador agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and idenllfied in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECN compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anil-
hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Ccx^traclor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastruciure. ̂

8. Disposition

1. If the'Contractor svill maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), (he Contractor will'maintain a docurhented process-for
securely disposing of such data upon request or cbniract termination; and will
obtain written cerlificalion for any Stale'of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containihg State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance, with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizaiion. or otherwise physically destroying (he media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for h^edia Sanitizaiion.' National Institute .of Standards end Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime o( the data destruction, and will provide written certiflcaiion to the Department
upon request. The written cerlificalion vyill indude alt details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulajpry and professional standards for-retention requirements will be jointly

'. evaluated by the Stale and Conlraclor prior to destruction.

2. UnTess' otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this..
Contract, Contractor -agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

■  3. Unless otherwise specified, within ■ thirty (30) days-of (he termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy al) electronic Confidential Data
by means'of data erasure, also known as secure'data sviplng.

lY- PROCEDURES FOR SECURIlV

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
- derivative data or files, as foliows:

1. The Contractor vwll maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services. " '

2. The Contractor will mainialn policies and procedures to. protect Department
confidential information throughout (he information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the,
media used to store the data (i:e., tape, djsk. paper, etc.).
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3. The ConirBClor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper eocurily monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department corifidentlal intormaiion for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor-vvill provide regular security awareness and education for- Its End
Users in support of pr'ote'cling Department confldenllal Infonrnalion.

6. If the Contraclor will be sub-contracting any-core functions of Ih'e engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes thai defines specific security
expectations, and mqniloring compliance to security requiremerits that at a rnlnimum
match those for the Corilractor, Induding breach notification requirements.

7. .The Contractor will, work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
arkd procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintdining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and sighed by the Contraclor and. any applicebte sub-contractors prior to
syslerh access being authorized. - ^ .

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA)' with the Department arid is res|X>nslbie for maintaining cdmpliahce sviih the
agreernent. -

9. The Conlreclor will work with the Oepahmeni at its request to complete a Systerh
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Deparlmeril and
Contraclor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life .of the Conlraclor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, o.r an alternate lime frame at the Departments discretion .with agreement by
(he Cbniractor, or the Department may request the.survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Conlraclor svill not store, knosvingly.or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundarie.s of fhe United Stales'unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Date Security Breach Liabiiily. In the event of any security breach Contractbr shell
make efforts to investigate the causes of .the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from (he breach.
The Stale shall recover frorh (he Contractor at! costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Inctudlng but not limiiecf to; credit monUoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and'telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

• 12. Contractor must, compty with eti applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security ot Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI arxf PHI at a level and-scope'that Is not less
ihari the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not llrnited to.-provisions- of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5520). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections lor individually .identifiable health
information and as applicable urxfer State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate adminislralive. technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the .conndenliaiily of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of securiiy requirements''
established by the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Veridpr Resources/Procuremeni at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doH/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors. ' '

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification, and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify ihe Stale's Privacy Ofilcer and the

- State's Security Officer of any securiiy breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a conndenlial information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conlldeniial Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to

. perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Conlraclor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvenenl disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all ilmes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic:devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-prole,cled.

d. send emails containing Confidential Inforrnation only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to.
receive such information. •
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e. Ilmll disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f. .Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually

Identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as weU as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks; card keys,
biomelric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
. derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in alt cases.
such- data must be encrypted at all limes when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using ' appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based

•  assessment of the circumst.ances involved. • .

1.- understand that their user credentials (user nartte and password) musl..n6t ,be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.

• This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party appllcalion.'

Contractor Is responsible for oversight end compliance of their £nd Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct' ohsile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations unlit such time the Confideritial Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. "

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents end Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.-

The Conlractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • .306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.

.  -Contractor's procedures must also address how the Qontractor will:

Identify Incidents; . '

Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
end determine risk-based responses to incidents: and
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5. Determine whether Breach notirtcalion is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach nolincation methods', liming, source, and. contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitloation
measures. . ' »

incidenia and/or'Broaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and'reporled as
applicable, rn eccordancc wilh NH RSA 359.C:20. '

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPfivacyOfficer@dhhs.nti.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnfofmalionSecurjlyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Lati updtie 1 eras/18'
EKhlbii K.

DHHS Inlormatlon

Security Requlremenit
Pose • of 9

Coniracio< inliuu

Oato

A-


